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Report Item 2a: Organization Chart

Delmar Bancorp
No LEI

Salisbury, Maryland
State of Incorporation - MD

The Bank of Delmarva

Seaford, Delaware
Delmar Bancorp Owns 100%
State of Incorporation - DE

Delmarva Real Estate Holdings LLC
No LEI

Salisbury, Maryland
The Bank of Delmarva Owns 100%

State of Incorporation - MD
Managing Member 

549300T77W6SEYOH0U64



Data Action Effective Date Branch Service Type Branch ID_RSSD* Popular Name Street Address City State Zip Code County Country FDIC UNINUM* Office Number* Head Office Head Office ID_RSSD* Comments

OK Full Service (Head Office) 885225 BANK OF DELMARVA, THE                                                   910 NORMAN ESKRIDGE HIGHWAY        SEAFORD                   DE 19973      SUSSEX            UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 664411 MAIN AND CLAYTON BRANCH                                            28280 CLAYTON STREET                            DAGSBORO               DE 19939      SUSSEX            UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 852816 DELAWARE AVENUE AND MARKET STREET BRANCH     200 EAST MARKET STREET                        LAUREL                    DE 19956      SUSSEX            UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 3283233 REHOBOTH BRANCH                                                             18572 COASTAL HIGHWAY                       REHOBOTH BEACH  DE 19971      SUSSEX            UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 3877995 NEW DELMAR BRANCH                                                        9550 OCEAN HIGHWAY                             DELMAR                    MD 21875      WICOMICO     UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 2944359 OCEAN CITY BRANCH                                                            12505 COASTAL HIGHWAY                       OCEAN CITY              MD 21842      WORCESTER   UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 5191677 WEST OCEAN CITY BRANCH                                                12720 OCEAN GATEWAY, UNIT 4            OCEAN CITY              MD 21842      WORCESTER   UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 2431699 2727 NORTH SALISBURY BRANCH                                      2727 NORTH SALISBURY BOULEVARD    SALISBURY                MD 21801      WICOMICO     UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 1169070 921 EASTERN SHORE BRANCH                                            921 EASTERN SHORE DRIVE                      SALISBURY                MD 21804      WICOMICO     UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 886820 BEAGLIN PARK DRIVE BRANCH                                           241 BEAGLIN PARK DRIVE                         SALISBURY                MD 21804      WICOMICO     UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 2063876 PECAN SQUARE BRANCH                                                     1206 NANTICOKE ROAD                            SALISBURY                MD 21801      WICOMICO     UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 3372276 CHERRY HILL BRANCH                                                           2099 ROUTE 70 EAST                                 CHERRY HILL             NJ 08003      CAMDEN         UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 3205253 EVESHAM BRANCH                                                               145 NORTH MAPLE AVENUE                     MARLTON                 NJ 08053      BURLINGTON  UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225

OK Full Service 3312311 MOORESTOWN BRANCH                                                     227 WEST CAMDEN AVENUE                    MOORESTOWN        NJ 08057      BURLINGTON  UNITED STATES  Not Required Not Required BANK OF DELMARVA, THE   885225
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Report Item 3: Shareholders 
 
 
Part 1: 
 
 
The following persons were known by the Bank to own beneficially, directly or indirectly, 
more than 5% of the common stock of Delmar Bancorp.   
 
   Kenneth R. Lehman 
   Arlington, Virginia, USA 
   USA 
   4,117,936 shares 41% 
 

CEDE & Company (holds certificate for shareholders in street 
name) 

   New York, NY, USA 
   USA 
   4,273,234 shares 43% 
 
 
Part 2: 
 
None 
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Report Item 4: Directors and Officers 
 
Wade H. Insley, III 
Salisbury, MD, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation:   Attorney in the Law Firm of Laws, Insley and Benson P.A. 
 
4a.  1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 50% interest in W&L Real Estate Partnership, 
 100% interest in Insley Enterprises, LLC 
 
Mark Granger  
Salisbury, MD, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation: Principal of Granger & Company, P.A. 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 100% interest in Granger & Company, P.A. 
 100% interest in Granger Financial Services LLC 

50% interest in Sam & Max LLC 
 
Joseph A. Maressa, Jr.  
Waterford Works, NJ, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation: Licensed Title Insurance Agent 
 
4a. 1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 32% interest in Aloe Village IV Limited Partnership 
 50% interest in Boardwalk Settlement Service, LLC 
 33.33% interest in Buena Terrace II, LP 
 33.33% interest in Buena Terrace IV Limited Partnership 
 26.66% interest in Clayton Apartments Limited Partnership 
 33.34% interest in Delsea View Limited Partnership 
 50% interest in Edgewood Acres IV LTD Partnership 
 50% interest in Hays Mill Associates 
 50% interest in Hays Mill Associates Limited Partnership 
 25% interest in Henwood Associates LLC 
 100% interest in Joseph A. Maressa Jr. Inc. 
 100% interest in Joseph A. Maressa Jr., Esq 
 50% interest in Liverpool Estates Limited Partnership 
 25% interest in MAJ Enterprises Inc. 
 25% interest in Maressa Family Real Estate Holdings, LLC 
 50% interest in Maressa Patterson, LLC 
 25% interest in Medford Development Group, LLC 
 50% interest in Monroe Towne East LP 
 25% interest in Neck Road Associates, LLC 
 25% interest in Paxson Associates, LLC 
 100% interest in Title Agency of America 
 100% interest in Title America Corporation 
 100% interest in Title America Delaware Inc. 
  
 
 
 



James A. Tamburro  
Medford, NJ, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation: Attorney in the Law Firm of Tamburro Law Office 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 100% interest in Tamburro Law Office 
 
David C. Doane 
Dagsboro, DE, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation:    Certified Public Accountant at the Firm of Jefferson, Urian, Doane & 
Sterner P.A. 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. N/A 
 
Edward M. Thomas 
Salisbury, MD, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation:    Trustee of the Jack and Anne Smith Family Foundation 
 
4a. 1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. N/A 
 
Robert C. Wheatley 
Seaford, DE, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation: Associate Broker at Keller Williams Commercial and Principal Partner of 
The Whayland Group, LLC 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 100% interest in The Whayland Group LLC 
 100% interest in KEB Properties LLC 
 33.33% interest in The Porvenir Group, LLC 
 
J. Phillip Wright, Jr. 
Hebron, MD, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation: Chairman of VP Enterprises and President of SAS Shore Footwear, Inc. 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 60% interest in VP Enterprises 
 60% interest in Delmarva Footwear, Inc. 
 72% interest in SAS Shore Footwear, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Henry H. Hanna, III 
Salisbury, MD, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation: Senior advisor for Sperry Van Ness/Miller Commercial Real Estate 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 100% Eastland Development Corporation 
 50% Northwood Business Center LLC 
 33.33% HTL Inc. 
 50% H&D Johnson Road LLC 
  
Jeffrey F. Turner 
Chance, MD, USA 
Chairman of the Board of Delmar Bancorp 
Chairman of the Board of The Bank of Delmarva  
Principal Occupation: Retired President and Chief Executive Officer of Mercantile Peninsula Bank 
  
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 100% JFT, LLC 
 
Heidi J. A. Gilmore 
Millsboro, DE USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva  
Principal Occupation:  Partner in the law firm Baird Mandalas Brockstedt LLC  
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 25 % interest in 6 South State Street LLC 
 
Laura Deeley Bren 
Ocean City, MD, USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva 
Principal Occupation: President of insurance agency Deeley Insurance Group, LLC. 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 40% interest in Smith, Cropper & Deeley, Inc. 
 100% interest in LDB Insurance, Inc. 
  
Kenneth R. Lehman 
Arlington, VA USA 
Director of Delmar Bancorp 
Director of The Bank of Delmarva  
Principal Occupation:  Private investor and former banking and securities attorney  
4a. 41% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 44% Marine Bancorp and Marine Bank & Trust Company 

100% BVC Capital LLC  
 50% Village Bank & Trust Financial Corporation and Village Bank 
 45% Heritage Bancorporation and The Heritage Bank 
 42% Virginia Partners Bank 
 57% CCF Holding Company and Heritage Bank 
 51% ABB Financial Group and Affinity Bank 
 49% Providence Bank 
 21% IMF Hemika SACA LLC 
 
 
 



John W. Breda 
Delmar, MD, USA 
Principal Occupation: President and Chief Executive Officer of The Bank of Delmarva and 
Delmar Bancorp 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. N/A 
 
Deborah S. Abbott 
Ocean City, MD, USA 
Principal Occupation: Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of The Bank of 
Delmarva and Vice-President of Delmar Bancorp 
 
4a. <1% 
4b. N/A 
4c. 50% interest in Friendship Cottage Antiques & Neat Stuff 
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DELMAR BANCORP 
AND SUBSIDIARIES 

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

At year end: 2018 2017 2016 

Totol ossets s 739.415.724 s 562,259,537 s 512,367,907 
Loons rece[voble, net 625,513.347 462,701.244 424.077. 145 
Investment securities 51,300.284 46,661.741 48,345.417 
Federol funds sold 1,254,413 3.492,835 1,262,322 
Demand and NOW deposils 239,956,769 193,740.208 177,300,080 
Savings and l ime deposits 374,968,578 271.716,506 256. 182,857 
Stockholders' equity 65,988,052 49,065,999 46,181,505 
Tangible Common equity per shorE 5.98 5,97 5.62 

For the yeor: 

Total income 36,693,223 26,209,385 23,820.488 
Totot expenses 31,210,485 22,795,001 19,802,761 
Net income {loss) 5,482,738 3,414,384 4,017,727 

Basic eorn1ngs per shore 0.566 0.415 0.489 
Basic earnings per shore, 

excluding intangibles 0.598 0.415 0.489 

Key ratios: 

Yield on earning assets 4.96% 4.60% 4.45% 
Net interest income 27,814.071 20,303.669 18,078,746 
Return on overage assets 0.84% 0.64% 0.81% 
Return on overage equity 9.53% 7.17% 8.98% 
Average equity to overage assets 8.84% 8.86% 8.99% 

Tier t risk-bosed copitol {Bonk) 10.49% 11.09% 11.74% 
Total risk-based capital {Bonk) 11.68% 12.34% 13.00% 
Leverage capitol ratio {Bonk) 8.74% 9.18% 9.38% 
(See Note I SI 

Number or b<onch omces 14 10 10 
Loon production offices 
Number of administrative offices 2 2 2 
Number of employees 161 129 120 
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March 25, 2019 
 

Dear Shareholders, 
 
 

Delmar Bancorp and its wholly-owned subsidiary, The Bank of Delmarva, realized 
another successful year during 2018. We completed the merger with Liberty Bell 
Bank, while delivering on organic growth, asset quality, capital management and 
profitability. Assets, loans and deposits were $739.4 million, $625.5 million and $614.9 
million, respectively, at December 31, 2018, up 31.5%, 35.2%, and 32.1%, respectively, 
over year-end 2017. Net income grew $2.1 million, or 60.6%, in 2018, mainly as a result 
of the acquired and organic loan growth, margin management and the benefit 
from lower tax rates as a result of the 2017 tax reform. In addition, the Bank sold its 
investment division for a one-time gain of approximately $300,000 during November 
2018.  Increases in income were offset by merger expenses related to both the 
consummated Liberty transaction and the future acquisition of Virginia Partners Bank 
of $1.6 million. We view these expenses as an investment in future growth and 
profitability.  Basic earnings per share for the year ended December 31, 2018 were 
$0.57, which is 36.3% higher than 2017, giving proof to the return on that investment.  
 

The federal tax overhaul enacted in December of 2017 lowered the corporate 
statutory tax rate to 21% for tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, which was 
significantly below the roughly 35% effective rate regularly recorded by community 
banks since the credit crisis. While the legislation prompted us to revalue our deferred 
tax assets during 2017 and resulted in a write-down that negatively impacted 
earnings in that year, the lower rates considerably boosted results during the current 
year. Earnings before taxes increased in 2018, but tax expense decreased 
approximately $857,000 and tax expense as a percentage of pretax income 
decreased 18.4% from the prior year.  
 

We were pleased to welcome Liberty Bell Bank into The Bank of Delmarva family in 
2018. The integration of the acquisition was successful, and the seamless transition for 
clients is a testament to the customer-centric culture shared across each 
organization. The Liberty merger has enabled us to establish a presence in the South 
Jersey and Philadelphia metro markets.  
 

The Bank possesses an experienced, talented team which works diligently to build 
strong customer relationships. We continue to attract customers who value the 
desirable combination of premium, personalized service with timely, local decision 
making. Moreover, our customers appreciate the fact that their deposits are put to 
work in their very own community. 
Our branches continue to be important. While we process fewer transactions at 
branches than in the past, branches continue to be places that project our brand, 
solve customer problems, and house multiple lines of business. Business owners want 
to interact face to face with our branch employees, and they also want a 
convenient place for their employees to cash their checks. Additionally, individual 
customers appreciate being recognized and greeted each time they enter one of 
our branches to transact business.  
 

We take great pride in providing tailored solutions that help individuals, families and 
businesses achieve their financial goals. This customer-focused approach to banking 
continues to differentiate us in the markets we serve and positions us well for further 
profitable growth. 
 

We continually look for ways to deepen customer relationships and develop new 
ones. We remain committed to helping our customers succeed. We have aligned 
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technology-based offerings with knowledgeable bankers across business lines, 
including mobile and online capabilities, putting human interaction at the center. 
This will deliver a unique integrated customer experience and enable us to better 
cross-sell relevant products and services. 
 

We recognize the value of investing in community. This remains a core value for us 
today. Not only do we invest in our communities via donations and sponsorships, we 
also encourage our employees to participate in worthwhile community service 
projects, offering them paid volunteer time to empower them to do so. Our 
employees took this passion to a new level, donating over 5,400 hours over the 
course of this past year. They are a truly remarkable group of people who account 
for every bit of our success. 
 

The bylaws of the company require directors to step down at the end of the 
calendar year in which they reach the mandatory retirement age. I regret to 
announce that Directors Wade “Beau” Insley and Phillip Wright retired from the 
Board effective December 31st. We have benefited greatly from both Beau and 
Phil’s leadership on the Board for almost four decades. We thank them for their 
dedicated service and outstanding contributions to our organization, and they will 
be deeply missed. We extend our gratitude and best wishes to Beau & Shan Insley 
and Phil & Carol Wright. 
 

The adoption in 2020 of a new accounting standard, dubbed the Current Expected 
Credit Loss model, or CECL, will mark a considerable shift in how banks reserve for 
loan losses. Today, banks record loan losses when it becomes probable that a loan 
will be impaired, dispersing reserves over time. This process will change under CECL 
and banks will begin significantly building their allowance for loan losses on the date 
of adoption. The new CECL requirements may increase an institution’s operating 
cost in the form of personnel, technological and governance costs of 
implementation, and it is also possible the amount of capital set aside in loan loss 
reserves could increase. We have been diligently working on our implementation 
plan, and will be ready when required to adopt CECL standards next year. 
 

On December 13, 2018 , Virginia Partners Bank (“Partners”) entered into a share 
exchange agreement with Delmar Bancorp (“Delmar”), pursuant to which Partners 
shareholders will exchange shares of common stock for shares of Delmar common 
stock (the “share exchange”). Partners and Delmar believe the combination of the 
two companies will provide benefits from increased efficiencies and economies of 
scale, and enhance the ability of the combine company to access the public 
capital markets in order to support further growth, bolster the company’s capital 
ratios, and enhance shareholder value and liquidity. Partners and Delmar expect to 
complete the share exchange shortly after all of the conditions to the share 
exchange are fulfilled, including obtaining the approval of Partners shareholders at 
a special meeting, and the approval of the applicable regulatory agencies. Delmar 
and Partners anticipate this will occur in the second or third quarter of 2019. 
 

Overall, the Bank possesses a strong capital base which provides a solid foundation 
for continued growth. We look forward to a prosperous 2019 and beyond. Thank you 
for your continued support. 
 

Sincerely, 
 

 
John W. Breda 
President and Chief Executive Officer 
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EXECUTIVE OVERVIEW 
 

Delmar Bancorp is a bank holding company whose primary asset is The Bank of 

Delmarva.  The financial statements of Delmar Bancorp consolidate the financial 

statements of Delmar Bancorp, The Bank of Delmarva, Davie Circle LLC, Delmarva 

Real Estate Holdings LLC, Delmarva BK Holdings, LLC, DHB Development LLC of 

which the Bank holds a 40.55% interest, West Nithsdale Enterprises LLC of which the 

Bank holds a 10.00% interest and FBW Delmarva LLC of which the Bank holds a 

50.00% interest.  The discussion and analysis which follow pertain to the operation 

of all the entities during 2018, but with the primary focus on the Bank.  
 

Consolidated assets of Delmar Bancorp increased 31.5% to end the year at $739.4 

million, which was an annual increase of $177.2 million.  A significant part of this 

increase was due to the acquisition of Liberty Bell Bank, which contributed $151.5 

million in assets.  The remaining $25.6 million, or 4.6%, was organic growth. 
 

The Bank’s investment portfolio consists of Federal Agency, municipal, mortgage-

backed and equity securities. The investment portfolio was $51.3 million at the end 

of 2018 or an increase of $4.6 million from $46.7 million in 2017.   
 

The Bank’s loan portfolio, net of the Allowance for Credit Losses, was $625.5 million 

at the end of 2018 or an increase of $162.8 million from $462.7 million in 2017. The 

acquisition of Liberty Bell Bank contributed $121.7 million in loan balances.  The 

remaining $41.1 million, or 8.9%, was organic growth. 
 

The Bank’s Allowance for Credit Losses was $7.1 million at year end and represents 

1.1% of ending loan balances.  A total of $1.2 million was expensed from 

operations and added to the Allowance in 2018.  Charge-offs of $1.2 million and 

recoveries of $339,000 in addition to the $1.2 million which was expensed from 

operations accounted for the change in the Allowance for 2018.  Management 

believes that the Allowance for Credit Losses is considered adequate based upon 

the nature of the Bank’s loan portfolio, historical loan losses and the credit quality 

of the current loan portfolio as of December 31, 2018, however there can be no 

guarantees that additional charge-offs or additional provisions for nonperforming 

loans will not be required or that currently performing loans will continue to 

perform at their current levels.   
 

The primary source of funding for the Bank’s loan and investment activities comes 

from deposit accounts owned by individuals, corporations, partnerships and other 

entities and from Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings.  Total deposits increased 

by $149.5 million to $614.9 million.  The acquisition of Liberty Bell Bank contributed 

approximately $138.2 million in deposit balances.  The remaining increase of $11.2 

million, or 2.4% was organic growth.  Non-interest bearing demand accounts were 

30.2% of total deposits and were $185.5 million at the end of 2018, an increase of 

$31.3 million or 20.3% compared to 2017.  Interest bearing deposits were $429.4 

million at the end of 2018.  NOW accounts, savings accounts, money market 

accounts and certificates of deposit with balances greater than $100,000 

increased by 38.8% while certificates of deposits with balances less than $100,000 

increased by 36.3% compared to 2017.   
 

Federal Home Loan Bank borrowings provide additional funding for short term and 

long term needs.  The Bank ended 2018 with $43.5 million in long term borrowings 

compared to $44.1 million at December 31, 2017.  The Bank had $7.0 million in 

short term borrowings at the end of 2018.  There were no short term borrowings as 

of December 31, 2017.  
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The Bank had an additional $6.5 million of long term borrowings from an institution 

other than the Federal Home Loan Bank at the end of 2018. 

  

Total capital at the holding company increased by approximately $16.9 million or 

34.5%.  Adjustments to capital in 2018 include net income of approximately $5.5 

million and the issuance of common stock to Liberty Bell stockholders of 

approximately $12.8 million.  Tangible capital at year end was $59.7 million in 

comparison to $49.1 million at the end of 2017.  The holding company and the 

Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by 

Federal banking agencies.  Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory 

framework for prompt corrective action, the holding company and Bank must 

meet specific capital adequacy guidelines that involve quantitative measures of 

the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance sheet items as calculated 

under regulatory accounting practices.  The Bank’s capital amounts and 

classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about 

components, risk weightings, and other factors.  At December 31, 2018 the holding 

company and Bank met all capital adequacy requirements to which they are 

subject and are considered to be “Well Capitalized”.  Management’s goal is to 

maintain capital levels in excess of minimum regulatory capital guidelines that are 

sufficient to support potential growth and absorb potential losses.  During each 

quarter of 2018 the Bank paid a dividend to common stock shareholders. 
 

The Bank’s primary source of income is interest income derived from the loan and 

bond portfolios.  Total interest income in 2018 was $33.2 million, an increase of 

approximately $9.8 million from 2017.  Interest income from the loan portfolio was 

$31.4 million at the end of 2018.  Interest income from the bond portfolio was 

approximately $1.2 million, which included approximately $554,000 in income 

exempt from federal taxation. 
 

The primary source of interest expense is interest paid to depositors and for other 

borrowed money.  Interest paid to depositors totaled $3.8 million, an increase of 

approximately $1.8 million from 2017.  Total interest expense in 2018 was $5.4 

million, an increase of approximately $2.3 million from 2017. 
 

Net interest income for 2018 totaled $27.8 million.  This is an increase of 37.0% over 

the prior year’s $20.3 million in net interest income.  The net interest margin in 2018 

was 4.15%, compared to 4.01% in 2017. 
 

Other income includes service charges on deposit products, rental of safe deposit 

boxes, the brokerage of stock and bond products, and gains on the sale of assets 

and securities.  Other income increased approximately $638,000 in 2018.    
 

Operating expenses, including net write downs on other real estate owned of 

approximately $384,000, were $22.3 million in 2018 compared to $15.6 million in 

2017, representing an increase of $6.7 million or 43.0%.  The operating expense to 

average asset ratio of the holding company, excluding any impairment losses, was 

3.4% in 2018 compared to 2.9% in 2017.   
 

Net income was approximately $5.5 million in 2018 compared to net income of 

approximately $3.4 million reported in 2017.  This is an increase of approximately 

$2.1 million.  Total shares outstanding at year end 2018 were 9,985,321 and at year 

end 2017 were 8,219,576.  The basic earnings per share were $.566 per share in 

2018 compared to $.415 per share in 2017.   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITJ)RS__:_REPORT 

Board of Directors 
Delmar Bancorp 
Salisbury, Maryland 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Delmar Bancorp and 
subsidiaries, whkh comprise lhe consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2018 and 
2017, and the related consolidated statements of income, statements of comprehensive 
income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash nows for the lhree years ended December 
31, 2018, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Respons ibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to 1he preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement , whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is 10 express an opinio n on these consol idated financial statements based on 
our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States o f America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal cootrol relevant to the eotity 's preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of s ignificant accounting estimates made by management , as well as 
evaluating the overdll presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

955Mr. Ha,mooRood I Sol;sbury,M02Hl04 I 410-742-1328 I 1-888S4o-l574 
114 Boys • ..,,, S.,;kf;ng A I PO Bo, 627 I EaS10n, MD 21601 I 410822-4008 



 
7 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our aud it opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all 
material respects, the consol idated financial position of Delmar Bancorp and its subsidiaries 
as of December 31, 20 I 8 and 2017, and the results of their operations and their cash nows 
for the three years ended December 31, 2018, in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

c11/lh ✓t>-: t ~I( r. 
Salisbury, Maryland 
March 14, 2019 

955 Mr. Heu»on R<><,d I S<,li,bv,y, MO 21804 I 410,742,1328 I 1-888-546-1574 
11 4 Bay Soeet, Building A I PO Box 627 I Ea..,n, MD 21601 I 4 10822-4008 
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ASSETS 
Cash and due from banks 

DELMAR BANCORP 

CONSOUDA TEO BALANCE SHEETS 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 

lnteres1 bearing deposits in other financial insri1u1ions 
Federal funds sold 

Cash and cash cquh•alents 
Securities available for sale. at folr value 
Loons, less allowance for crcdi1 losses 
2018 $7,063,310 ; 2017 $6,702.599 

Accmcd interest receivable on loans and investment 
securities 

Premises and equipment. at cosl, 
less accumulated dcpn..-ciation 

Federal Home Loan B::ink stock. at cost 
Maryland Fimmcinl Bank stock. at c~t 
Atlantic Central Bankers Bi)nk stock. a, cost 
Other inves1menlS 
Oererred ta.-< asse1 
Other real es1a1e owned 
Core deposit i.nt:1ogible 
Goodwill 
O1her assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Deposits: 

Non interest bearing demand 
NOW 
Savings and money market 
Time, $100,000 or more 
Other rime 

Accrued intcrcsl payable on deposits 
Shon•tcm1 borrowings 
Long•tcrm borrowings 
Noles payable 
Other liabilities 

Total liabilities 

COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES & SUBSEQUENT EVENT 

STOCKIIOtDF.RS' F.QUITY 
Common s tock, par value S.0 I, authorized 20,000.000 shares, 
issued and o u1standing 2018 9,985,.321 and 2017 8,219,576 

Surplu.$ 
Rernined earnings 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of 
deferred tax benefits 201 8 $263,365 ; 20 1 7 $91.355 

Total s1ockholders' equity 

Tot:11 liabilities and stockholders' equity 

2018 

24,346,568 
4,093,198 
1,254,413 

29,694,179 
51,300,284 

625.513,347 

2. 102,891 

10,047,960 
2.651.800 

131,250 
J,537.007 
4,829,420 
3,660,354 
1,069,000 
5,237,067 
1,641,165 

S 739,415,724 

S 185,475,609 
54,481,160 

123,948,577 
115,030,083 
135,989,918 
614.925,34 7 

391,579 
7,000.000 

43,488.929 
6,5-00,000 
1,121.817 

673,427,672 

99,853 
29,469,680 
37,149,484 

(730,965) 

65,988,052 

S 739,415,7?4 

2017 

22,057.980 
7.031,667 
3,492.835 

32.582.482 
46.661,74 1 

462.701 .244 

1,597.819 

7,841.470 
2.353.700 

30,000 
75,000 

1.500,000 
1,876,261 
3.654,958 

1,384,862 

S 562.259.537 

$ 154.188,173 
39.552,035 

107,316,819 
64.622.631 
99.111.056 

465.456.714 
229.540 

44.147.500 
2.000.000 
1.359.784 

513.193.538 

82,196 
16,622.245 
32.614,597 

(253,039) 

49,065,999 

S 562.259.537 

The Selected No1£~£ to Consolidated Financial Stau.>mem£ are an imegrol pan o/1hes~ ro11solidati!d fi11a,1cial .s,a,eme,m. 
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DELMAR BANCORP 

CONSOU 0 A TEO STATEMENTS OF l l\"COME 
Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 

2018 

INTEREST 12'/COME ON: 
Lo.ms., indudi_ng fees 3 1,36 1,506 22,028,091 
lnvestrneni securities: 

Taxable 647,398 523. 159 
Exempt from Federal income tax 554,480 480.721 

federal funds :sold 113,650 62,064 
01her in1eres1 income 496,038 232.682 

33,173,072 23526.717 

INTEREST EXPE SEON: 
OeposilS 3,790,361 2,008.974 
Borrowings 1.568,640 1.014.074 

5,359,001 3,023,048 

NET INTEREST INCOME 27,814.071 20,303.669 
Provision for credit losse-s 1, 175.000 945.000 

NET INTERE~T INCOME AnER l'ROVIS I0'.'1 
ron CR[OIT LOSSllS 26,639,071 19.358.669 

OTHER INCOME: 
Sel'\•ice charges on deposit accounts 1,316,933 1.349,098 
{Losses) gains on other rc.il estate owned (383.861) 2 1.756 
(Losses) gains on investment securilies (7.974) 
Gain on sale of investment division 299.868 
Gains on disposal of other a.sse1s 105,l0I 
Other income 1,798.149 1.511.814 

3,IJ6,l90 2,874,694 

OTHER EXPENSES: 
Salaries and employee benefi1s 10.649,070 8.279.178 
Premises and c.-quipmcn1 3.257,629 2.056.579 
Wri1c down of Maryland f inancial bank stock 30,000 
Amoniz~lion of core deposit intangible 420,000 
01J1cr ex1>en~s 7,577,396 5.268,161 

l l.934.095 15.603.918 

INCOME BEFORE TAXES ON L\'COME 7,841.266 6,629.445 

Federal and stale income taxes l,l58,Sl8 3,215.061 

NET INCOME 5,482,738 3.414.384 

Earnings per common share 
Bnsic 0.566 0.415 
Diluted 0.565 0.411 

19,882,956 

517.580 
456.740 

44.492 
143.19 1 

21.044,959 

2.097,797 
868.416 

2.966,213 

18.078,746 
862.000 

17.216.746 

1.283,J I l 
21.397 
48,069 

1.444,147 
2,796,926 

7.329,731 
1,945,646 

4,345,210 
13.620.587 

6,393.085 

2.375.358 

4,017.727 

0.489 
0.480 

The Selected Notes to Consolidated FinauciaJ Statements are an integral pan of these consolid<11edfi11a11cial statements. 
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DEL~IAR BA'ICORP 

CONSOLIDATED STATEM ENTS OF COMPREHEJ\SJVE INCOME 

Years Ended Decembe r JI, 2018, 2017, and 2016 

:'IIET INCOME 

OTHER COMPREHEi\"SIVE (LOSS) I NC0:\1E, NET OF TAX 

Unrealized Jiolding (losses) gains or\ sccuri1ics available for sale 

arising during the period 
Deferred income 1ax benefits (liabilities) 

Rcchissilication adjustment for los§(.-S (gains.) included 
in net income 

Deferred income UL" (benefits) liabilities. 
Other comprehensive income (loss:). net of Lax 

TOTAL OTHER COMPR[IIEr-.'SIVE (LOSS) 1:-IC O.\ IE 

COMPR.EII ENSIVE INC0;\·1E 

2018 

5 482 738 

(65-0,15 1) 

.ln.225 
(477,926) 

(477.926) 

~ 901 HP 

2017 

3,414.384 

80,873 

(2 1.431) 

59,442 

7,974 

(2. 114) 

5,860 

65,302 

31479 AA6 

2016 

4.017.727 

(776,930) 

]06.499 

(470,431) 

(48,069) 

18,963 

(29,106) 

(499,537) 

3 5ui 190 

The Selecle<I NOies lo Con-.JOlidured Fhumciul Sw1emenu ur.-011 integral part oftht's~ ronsol,datecljinu,1eial sfaU!ment.s. 
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DELMAR BANCORP 

CONSOLIDATEDSTATEMENTS OFSTOCKJJOLDERS' EQ UITY 
Ytars Ended Dtctmbtr 3 1, 2018, 2017, and 2016 

( Unuudih:·d) 

Accum ulated 

Other Total 

Common Retained Com prehcnsi\'c Stockholdc<>' 
Stock Surelus. Eatnin!,l:) Income ilos:s) Eguitv 

U..1lanccs. December J 1. 2015 8 1.743 16.688.173 26.369-200 181. 1% 43,320.312 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
e1 income 4,017.727 4 .017.727 

Other comprehensive loss. ncl of 1ax: 
Unrcu.l i,!Cd h()k ling losses on securi ties 

a"·ailable for s.1te a rising during the period (470.431) 
Reclassification adj ustment for gains included 

in ne1 income (29. 106) 

(499.537) 
TOTAL COMPREIIENSIVE INCOME 3.518.190 

Cash dividends. S0.070 per share (573. 771) (573.771) 
Rc.stdctcd stcw;k issu:;mcc 453 (453) 
Stock exchanged for employee tax ob ligation 

rcla1c<l w ~tock--basc<l com2£nsation (83,226) (83.226l 
ll:1h,nccs, Decem ber 3 1, 2016 82.196 16,604.494 29,8 13,156 (3 18.341) 46, ISi.SOS 

COMPREIIENSI VE INCOME 

Net income 3,414,384 3,414,384 
Otl1er compreherL~i\•e income. net of Lax: 

Unrcali1ed holding gains on securities 
avail~blc: for sale a r ising during the pcr i()d 59,442 

Reclassification adj usunem for losses included 
in net incom e S.860 

6S.l02 

TOTALCOMl'REHENSIVE INCOME 3.479,686 

Cash dividends. S0.080 pe r share (657,566) (657,566) 

Rec lassification adjusuucnl for Slr.indcd income 
l!Lx elicc&s in acc umulated other comp rchcm;ivc 

income 44.623 44.623 

S1ock•bascd compcns 111ion cxpc t\..-.C rccogni~d 

in carnin!-!,S, ne t of cmelovt:e tu: ()bli~illion 17.751 17,751 

B.1lanccs. December J l. 2017 82.196 16.622.245 32.614.597 (253.039) 49.065.999 

C OM PRF..H ENSIVE lNCOM E 

Net lnco,ue 5,482,738 5,482,738 

Othl.'r comprchtnsi,1c loss, net or to:: 
Unrt-alizl"-d holding lossrs on serurit~s 

imallabk- for sa le a r ising dur ing 1 ht per iod (477,926) 
(477,926) 

TOTA L COMPRF.:HfA~SIVE INCOM E 5.004,812 

Cash d.Mdends, S0.095 pu sh11re (947,851) (947,851) 
Ke51ricled st(K'ki5suancc 25 25 

Common s1ockissued for slockoptlo rts exercised 100 30,731 30,831 

C ommon stockl.ssoed to share llOlders 

or Liberty Dell Bun~ 17,5.12 12,780,704 12,798,236 

Slock-b.1std compensation expense recognized 

in earni!!H5, nl't of e~ yee ta.,: obliBation 36,000 36,000 
l:hlances, December JI, 20 18 99.853 29,469,680 37,149.484 pJo,965) 65.9S8,052 

n., S4-ltt1M No1n 10 Co,uo/Ma1M Financial S,a1bffl'11u a~ DJr ln1,grol pt:Jrt of ,hn, C'OII.U>lida1M financial na1l'menu. 
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DEU1A R BANCORP 

CONSOLIDAT ED STATEMEi\"TS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31 , 2018, 2017, and 2016 

2018 

CASH f'LOWS PROM OPERATlNC AC'l'IVITl lS: 
Net income 5,48"1.738 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to nct 

cash prm·idcd b)' operating :.1ctivitit"S: 
Prm·ision (Of credit losses and un(undcd commitments 1,175 ,000 
Depreciation 91~14 
Amortiza1ioo and :M:crction 638,6.JS 
(Gain) k>$s o n di~posal of assc1s (375,069) 
Nct losses (gains) on ()(her real cs1atc Qwncd, including writc-dc)..,.'11$ ]85.,172 

Deferred income tax c.Kpcnscs (benefits) 1,494, 161 

Stock-based compensation e:tpens.e, ne1 of employee ta.'< oblig::nk)l'l 36,000 
Rcclassifica1i0fl 3'ijUS1me111 for stranded income 1ax effects in 

,~mula1cd ~ bcr comf)«'hcnsive income 
Changes in asscis and liabilities: 

ll'lcre.'ls.e in ,tCCl'ued in1tres1 receivable (147,50!) 
Dea-ease (increase) in o.htr assets 632,166 
lncreaM: (decrease) in accrued int\'!resi pa)-abl~ 127,0?7 
Occn-...,se (increa.ie) in other liabililidi (1,513,611) 

Nc1 eash 2nwid<:d bv 2£:l'ating acii\'iti<:s 8.909,965 

CASU FLOWS FROM 1.\'Vl:STING ACTlV ITI ES: 
Purch~-s of .st."(;urities a"-ailablc for Qle (9,093,578) 
Purchasc5 of utbc,- innistmmts 
~ds from maturities and paydowm of ~ uritics available for sak 8.600.754 
Prooccds from saks of sccuritlc:$ available for salc 2,59().883 
Net increase in k>ans (4!,692.636) 
Proccccls from salc of assets 973,113 
Cash received in the purchase of liberty Bcll Bank 11,830.975 
Purchases of" premises and cquipmenl ( 1,450.807) 
Cash paid to shareholders of Libcny Bell Bank (4,471.JOZ) 
Proceeds from the sales of fOfccloscd 3."-'>Ct!i 934,425 
Pmcccds from sales of Fede-ml Home Loon Bank stock 978,700 
Purchase of Federal Home Loan Bank stock ! l ~ISl.300! 

Ne1 cash used b~ in'l'tslin~ ac1ivicte; (32,952,273) 

CASH Fl.OWS fROM rlNANCING ACTIVITI f.S: 
(Oocrcase) iocrcasc i.n demand. NOW, money 1narke1. 

a.od saviAgs depositS, oo (9,978,516) 
Cash received for the exercise of s1ocl: options 30,856 
rncrease {decrease) in 1ime deposiis. nee 21,206,634 
Proceeds from bo.-rowings 10 fond acquisi1ioo of Liberty BeU Ba11k. ne1 of lo.-1.n co.sis 4,450,000 
lncrease in bomrwings. ne1 6.341,429 
Dividends ~,id (896,398) 

Nc1 ea.sh 2rovick:d b;r fin.'tn<:int a(."1i,•it~ 21.154.005 

N"t (d«r('QS(') inHl"Ut- in cu:h ,i.nd rash t'quh·111lrnts (!,888.JOJ) 
Cuh llnd cub eguh·ak-nb, bt:G:!nnini;; 32,582,482 
Cash and c-ash e9ulnlents, endlnj! 29,694,179 

2017 

s 3.414.384 

945.000 
590.060 
2 19.574 

7.,_974 
(20,.550) 

(103,612) 
17,751 

44,623 

( 199,545) 
(214.939) 

3 1.83S 
660,095 

l.392.650 

(5,527.748) 
(500.000) 

4.83 1.450 
2.333.6JJ 

(41.344.746) 

( 1.427562) 

708,0IO 

(630,SOOJ 
(41.lS7,7l9l 

27,24.S,432 

4,728,345 

14,341.429 
(651.166) 

45.657.640 

9.492.531 
23.089.951 

s 32.582,482 

71re Stlet:ted Nate.~ to ConJo/idated Fintmd al Swtemt!llfS are b11 integral ptffl oftheJe <:011sufida1edji1umdal .HateirwnK 

(Continued) 

2016 

4.0 17.727 

862.000 
631.067 
2 13.067 
(49,368) 
(24,723) 
390,545 
(Sl,226) 

( ISl,192) 
244.479 

(2,998) 
103.746 

6.122.124 

(28.530.621) 

8,849.264 
2.040.840 

(32.286.446) 

(54<\.138) 

9 14,123 

p.B.OOOl 
!••.s 11,91si 

29,208,086 

(S,2Sl,7l6) 

4.806,071 
(491.123) 

25.24-0.278 

(18,449.576) 
4 1.539.527 

5 23,089,951 
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DELMAR B ANCORP 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016 

(Continued) 

Supplcnrntary cash now information: 

1 ntcrcst pa id 
locomc taxes pakl 
Total (dcprecia1ion) a ppreciat.ion on securities available for sale 

SUPPLEMENTARY NON-CASfl INVESTING ACTIVIT IES 
Fair value of assets acquired. net of cash and cash equivalents 
Fair value of liabilities assumed. nel of cash and cash equivalents 
Value o f shares provided to Liberty Bell Bank stockholders 
Loans convened to other real estate owned 

2018 

5,196.962 

1,777,052 

(650,151) 

139,701.280 

139t499,784 

12,798.236 
379.389 

2017 2016 

2,991,213 2,969.21 I 
2.859,01 I 1,908.779 

88.846 (824.999) 

1.775,647 500.548 

111e Selecied Notes 10 Co11solidated Financial S101ements a,·e mr integral par/ of these consolidaredfimmcial s fntemenl.s. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note l. Nature of Business and Its S ignificant Accounting Policies 

Delmar Bancorp is a bank holding company which owns all the out.Standing shares of capital stock of The Bank of 
Deln1a.rva, a conm1ercial bank operating in Wicomko and \Vorcester counties i.o Maryland, Susse.x County in 
Delaware, and Camden and Burlington counlies in New Jersey. The Bank provides financial services to individual 
and corporate customers, and is subjecl to competition from other financial institutions. The Bank is also subject to 
the regulations of certain Federal and state agencies and undergoes periodic examinations by 1hosc regulatory 
authorities. The accounting policies of the Bank confom1 t.o gener.llly accepted accounting principles and practices 
within the banking industry. 

S ignificant accouming policies not disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements are as follows: 

Principles of Consolidation: 

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delmar Bancorp, a bank holding company (the 
Company); its wholly owned subsidiary-The Bank of Delmarva (the "Bank''), a commercial bank engaged in 
ge.neral commercial banking operations in Maryland, Delaware and New Jen;ey; Delmarva Real Estate Holdings, 
LLC., a wholly owned subsidiary ofT11e Bank of Delmarva, which is a real estate holding company; Davie Circle, 
LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank of Delmarva, which is a real estate holding company; Delmarva BK 
Holdings, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of The Bank of Delmarva, which is a real estate holding company; DHB 
Development, LLC, of which the llank holds a 40.55% interest, and is a real estate holding company; West 
Nithsdale E nterp1ises, LLC, of which the Bank holds a 10% interest. and is a re.al estate holdiog company; and 
FBW, LLC, of which the Bank holds 50% interest, and is also a real estate holding company. All significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated, 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of consolidaled financial statements in conformity with accounting princ iples generally accepted 
within 1he Uni1ed States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assetS and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the 
consolidated financial statements and the reported arnountS of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Securities Available for S ale: 

Marketable debt and equity securities not classified as held to maturity are classified as available for sale. Securities 
available for sale are acquired as part of the Bank's asset/liability management strategy and may be sold in response 
to changes in interest rates, loan demand, changes in prepayment risk, and other factors. Securities available for sale 
are carried at fair value as determined by quoted market prices. Unrealized gains or losses based on Lhe difTerence 
between amortized cost and fair value are reported in olher comprehensive income. net of deferred tax. Realized 
gains and losses, using the specific identification method, are included as a separate component of other income 
(expense) and, when applicable, are reported as a reclassification adjustment, net of tax, in other comprehensive 
income. Premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income us ing the interest method over the period to 
maturity. Additionally, declines in Lhe fair value of individual investment securities below their cost that arc other 
than teJUporary are reflected as realized losses in the consoliduted s1atements of income. 

Othe r Sec urities: 

Federal Home Loan Bank ("FHLB"), Atlantic Cenrral Bankers Bank ("ACBB"), and Maryland Financial Bank 
("MFB") are equity interestS iu the FHLB, ACBB, and MFB respectively. These securilies do ool have a readily 
determinable fair value for purposes of ASC 320- 10 lnvestments-Debts and Equity Securities because their 
ownership is restricted and they lack an active market. As there is no readily detenninable fair value for these 
securities, they are carried at cost less any o ther-than-temporary impainncnt (OITI). Other Investments consistS of 
an equity ownership of Solomon Hess SBA l. oan Fund LLC which the value is adjusted for its prorata share of 
assets in the Fund. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note J. Nature of Business and Its Significant Accounting Policies (Contin ued) 

Loans and the Allowance for Credit Losses: 

Loans are genernlly carried at the amount of unpaid principalt adjusted for unearned loan fees, which are amortized 
over the tem1 of the loan us ing the cffoctivc in1crcs1 rate method. Interest on loans is accrued based on the principal 
amounts outstanding. 11 is the Bank?s policy to discont-inuc the accrual of interest when a loan is specifically 
detennined to be impaired or when principal or interest is delinquent for ninety days or more. When a loan is placed 
on nonaccrual status. all in1erest previously accrued but not collected is reversed against current period interest 
income. Int.crest income generally is not recognized on specific impainx1 loans unless the likelihood of further loss 
is remote. Cash collections on such loans are applied as reductions of the loan principal balance and no interest 
income is recognized on those loans until the principal balance has been collected. Interest income on other 
nonaccrual loans is recognized only to the extent of interest payments received. The carrying value of impaired 
loans is base.ct on the present value of the loan's expected future cash flows or, alternatively, the observable market 
price of the loan or the fai r value of the collateral. 

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level believed adequate by management to absorb probable losses 
inherent in the loan portfolio and is based on the size and current risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, an 
assessment of individual problem loans and actual loss experience. the value of the underlying collateral, and current 
economic events in specific industries and geographical areas, including unemployment levels, and other pe11inent 
factoJ's, including regulatol'y guidance and genernl economic conditions. Detennination of the allowance is 
inherently subjecti ve, tis it requires significant esti mi1tes, including the amounts and timing on his1orical loss 
experience, and consideration of current economic trends, all of which may be susceptible to significant change. 
1..-0an losses arc charged ofT against the allowance, while recoveries of amounts previously charged ofTarc credited 
to the allowance. A provision for credil losses is charged to operations based on management's periodic evaluation 
of the factors previously mentioned, as well as other peninent factors. Evaluations are conducled at leasl monthly 
and more o fien if deemed necessary. 

The allowance for credit losses typically consists of an allocated component and an unallocated component. The 
allocated component of1he allowance for credit losses rcnects expected losses resuhing from analyses developed 
through spe-cific credit alloca1ions for individual loans and historical loss cx1>ericncc for each loan category. 

The specific ercdit allocations are based on regular analyses of a\\ loans over a fixed-dollar amount where the 
internal credit raling is at or below a prcdctcnn incd classific{1tion. The historical loan loss clement is dctcnnincd 
statistically using an infonnal loss migration analysis that examines loss experience and the related internal gradings 
of loans charged ofT over a current 3 year period. The loss migration analysis is perfom,cd quarterly and loss factors 
are updated regularly bm,ed on actual experience. The allocated componenl of the allowance for credit losses also 
includes consideration of concentrntions and changes in ponfolio mix and volume. 

Any unallocated portion of the a llowance rcnccts management's estimate of probable inherent but undetected losses 
within the portfolio due to unce11ainties in economic cond itions, delays in obtaining information1 including 
unfavorable information about a borrower's fonancial condition, the difliculty in identifying iriggering events that 
co1Tcl;1te perfectly to subsequent loss rates, and risk factors that have not yet manifested themselves in loss 
allocation factors. ln addition, the unallocated allowance includes a compone111 that explicitly accout11s for the 
inherent imprecision in loan loss migration models. The historical losses used in the migration analysis may not be 
rcprcsentalivc. of aclual unrealized losses inherent in the J.X)rtfolio. It is management's intent to continually refine 
the methodology for the allowance for credit losses in an attempt to directly allocate potential losses in the loan 
portfolio under ASC Topic 31 O and minimize the unallocated portion of the a llowance for credit losses. 

Loan Charge-off Policies 

L-Oans are generally folly or partially charged down to the fair value of secu,i ng col later.ti when: 
managemen1 deems the asset to be unco\lectib1e 
repayment is deemed to be made beyond the reasonable time frames 
the asset has been classified as a loss by intemal or external review 
the borrower has filed bankruptcy and the loss becomes evident owing to a lack of assets 
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NOTES TO CONSOUDA TED FINANClAL STATEMENTS 

Note I. Nature of Business and Its Significant Accounting Pol.ides (Continued) 

Acquired Loans 

Loans acquired in connections with business combinations are recorded at their acquisition-date fair value with no 
carry over of related a llowance for credit losses. Any allowance for loan loss on these pools reflect only losses 
incurred after the acquisition (meaning the present value o f all cash flows expected at acquisition that ultimately are 
not to be received). Detem1ining the fair value of the acquired loans involves estimating the principal and interest 
cash flows expected 10 be collected on the loans and discounting those cash flows at a market rate o f interest. 
Management considers a number of factors in evaluating the acquisition-date fair value including the remaining life 
of the acquired loans, delinquency status. estimated prepayments, payment options and other loan features. internal 
risk grade, estimated value of the underlying collateral and interest rate environment. 

Acquired loans that met the criteria for nonaccrual of interest prior to the acquisition may be considered performing 
upon acquisition, regardless of whether the customer is contractually delinquent, ifwe can reasonably estimate the 
timing and amount of the expe.cted cash flows on such loans and ifwe expect to fully collect the new carrying value 
of the loans, including the impact of any accretable yield. 

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality arc accounted for in accordance with Accounting Standards 
Codification ("ASC') 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality (ASC 3 10-30) 
if, at acquisition, tJ1e loans have evidence of credit quality deteriorntion since origination and it is probable thal all 
contractually required payments will not be collected. Al acquis ition, the Company considers several factors as 
indicator that and acquired loan has evidence of deterioration in credit quality. These factors include; loans 90 days 
or more past due. loans with an internal risk grade of substandard or below, loans c lassir.ed as non-accrual by the 
acquired institution, and loans that have been previously modified in a troubled debt restructuring. 

Under the ASC 310-30 model, the excess of cash flows expected to be collected at acquis ition over recorded fair 
value is referred lo as the accretable yield and is the interest component of expected cash flow. T11e accretable yield 
is recognized into income over the remaining life of the loan if the timing and/or amount o f cash !lows expected to 
be collected can be reasonable estimated (the accretion method). If the timing or amount of cash flows expected to 
be collected cannot be reasonably estimated, the cost recovery method of income recognition is used. The 
diITerence between the loan's total scheduled principal and interest payment over all cash flows expected to be 
collected at acquisition, considering the impae-1 of prepayments, is referred to as the non-accretable di fference. The 
non-accretable diITerence represents contractually required principal and interest payments which the Company does 
not expect to collect. 

Over the life of the loan, management continues 10 estimate cash flows expected to be collected. Decreases in 
expected cash flows are recognized as impairments through a charge to the provision for loan losses resulting in an 
increase in the allowance for loan losses. Subsequent improvements in cash flows result in first, reversal of existing 
valuation allowances recognized subsequent to acquisition, if any, and next, an increase in the amount of accretable 
yield to be subsequently rocognized as interest income on a prospective basis over the loan's remaining life. 

Acquired loans that were not individually determined to be purchased with deteriorated credit quality are accounted 
for in accordance with ASC 310-20, Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (ASC 310-20), whereby the premium or 
discounl derived from the fair market value adjustmenl, on a loan•by-loan or pooled basis, is recognized into interest 
income on a level yield basis over the remaining expected life of the loan or pool. 

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO): 

OREO comprises properties acquired in partial or total satisfaction of problem loans. The properties are recorded at 
the lower of cost or fair value at the date acquire.cl. Losses arising at the time of acquisition of such properties are 
charged against the allowance for credit losses. Subsequent write-downs that may be required and expenses of 
operalion are included in other expenses. Gains and losses realized from the sale of OREO are included in other 
income. Al December 31,2018 there were nine properties with a combined value of$3,660,354 included in other 
real estate owned, and at December 31, 2017 there were eleven properties with a combined value of $3,654.958. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I. Nature of Business and Its Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Bank Premises and Equipment and Depreciation: 

Bank premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The provision for depreciation is 
computed using primarily 1he straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, ranging from two 10 
fitly years. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the lesser of the terms o f the leases or 1heir estimated 
useful lives. Expenditures for improvements that extend the life of an asset are. capitalized and depreciated over the 
asset's remaining useful life. Gains or losses realized on the disposition of premises and equipment are reflected in 
the consolidated statements of income. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to other expenses as 
incurred. Computer software is recorded at cost and amorti2ed over three to five years. 

Inta ngible Assets and Amortization : 

During 2012, the Bank restrucrured lhree borrowings with the FHLB and incurred a total prepayment penalty of 
S 1,645,571 (sec Note 8). The prepayment penalty was amortized to final maturity as an adjustment to intcrcs1 
expense and was fully amortiled at December 31, 2018. 

During 2018 the Bank acquired Liberty 8ell 8ank. ASC 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (ASC350), prescribes 
accounting for intangible assets subsequent 10 initial re.:ognition. Acq,1ired intangible assets (such as core deposit 
intangibles) are separately recognized if the bcnefil of the assets cao be sold, 1ransferred, licensed, rented, or 
exchanged, and amonized over tl1eir useful lives. intangible assets related to the acquisition are amortized (see Nole 
18). 

L-0ng-Li"ed Assets: 

The carrying value o f long-lived assets and certain identifiable intangibles is reviewed by managemenl for 
impainnent whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be 
recoverable as prescribed by ASC 360-10 Property, Plant, and Equipment As of December 3 1, 2018 and 20 I 7. 
certain loans were deemed to be impaired (see Note 3). 

lncome Taxes: 

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated Federal tax return. The pro\'ision for Federal and stale income 
taxes is based upon the consolidated results of operations. adjusted for tax-exempt incon1e. Deferred income taxes 
are provided under ASC 740- 10 Income Taxes by applying enacted s1an1tory rates to temporary differences between 
financial and tax bases of assets and liabilities. 

Temporary differences, which give rise to deferred tax assels relale principally lo the allowance for credit losses, 
accumulated amortization of intangibles, impaim1e-nt loss on securities, net operating loss carryforward, net losses 
on other real estate owned, and unrealized depreciation on securities available for sale. Temporary differences 
which give rise t(> deferred tax liabilities relate to accumulated dcprcci::ttion, deferred gains and accumulated 
accretioo of discount on debl securities. 

Credit Risk: 

The Bank has deposits in other financial institutions in excess of amounts insured by the Federal Deposit lnsuranc-e 
Corporation (FDlC}. The Bank has not experienced any losses in such accounts and management does not believe it 
is exposed to any significant credil risks with respect to such deposits. 

Cash and Cash Equi\'a(ents: 

The Bank has included cash and due from banks, interest bearing deposits in other financial institutions, and Federal 
funds sold as cash and cash equivalents for purposes of reporting cash flows. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note I. Nature of Business a nd Its S ignificant Accounting Pol.icies (Continued) 

Accounting for Stock Bas ed Compensation: 

T he Company fol lows ASC 7 18-I 0, Compe11satio11 - Stock Compensation for accounting and reporting for stock­
based compensation plans. ASC 718- 10 defines a fair value at grant date to be used for measuring compensation 
expense for stock-based compensation plans to be recognized in the s1atcn1en1 of income. 

During 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Updated (ASU) 
2016- 10 Teclt11ica/ Co1rec1/011s and lmprovemems. which replaced the clelinition of fair value previously used in 
ASC 7 18 with the definition of fair value from ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement. ' rhc amcndmcntS affecting ASC 
718-40 were effective and applied prospectively by the Company beginning January I, 2016. Management believes 
the resulting change in fair value measurement methodology is immaterial to the financial statements. 

Earnings (Loss) l'e r Share 

Basic earnings (loss) per common share are determined by dividing net income ( loss) adjusted for preferred stock 
dividends declared ancVor accumulated and accretion of warrants by the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding for each year, giving retroactive effect to stock splits and dividends. Weighted average shares 
outstanding were 9,691 ,459, and 8,2 19,576 for the years ended December 31, 20 I 8 and 2017, respectively. 
Calculations of diluted earnings per common share include the average dilutive common stock equivalents 
outstanding during the year, unless they are ami-dilulive. Dilutive common equivalent sh;ires consist of stock 
options calculated using the treasury stock method and restricted stock awards (See Note 14). 

Recent Accounting Pronounce.ments 

In January 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-0 1, "Financial lnstrnments - Overall (Subtopic 825- 10): Recognition 
and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities." ASU 2016-0 I, among other things, (i) requires 
equity investments, with certain exceptions, to be measured a1 fair value with changes in fair value recognized in net 
income, (ii) simplifies the impairment assessment of equity investments without rc.adily determinable fai r values by 
requiring a quuli1at.ivc assessment 10 identify impairment~ (iii) eliminates the requirement for public business entities 
to disclose the methods and significant assumptions used to estimate the fair value that is required to be disclosed for 
financial instruments measured at amortized cost on the balance sheet, (iv) requires public business entities to use 
the exit price notion when measur1ng the fair value of financial instmments for disclosure purposes, (v) requires an 
entity to present separately in other comprehensive income the portion of the total change in the fair value o f a 
liability resulting from a change in the instn1ment-specific credit risk when the entity has elected to measure the 
liability at fair value in accordance with the fair value option for financial instruments. (vi) requires separate 
presentation of financial assets and financial liabilities by measurement cmegory and form of financial asset on the 
balance sheet or the accompanying notes to the financial statements and (viii) clarifies that an entity should evaluate 
the need for a valuation allowance on a deferred tax asset related to available-for-sale securities. ASU 2016-01 
becomes e ffective for public companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15. 2017, including interim 
periods within those fiscal years. The adoption of ASU 2016-01 is not expected to have a material impact on the 
Company's consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTES TO CONS0UOA TED FlN ANCJA L STATEMENTS 

Note I. Nature of Business and Selected Accounting Policies (Continued) 

On February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, ··Leases (Topic 842)." ASU 2016-02 will, among other things, 
require lessees 10 recognize the following for all leases (with the exception of short-tern, leases) a, the 
commencement date: (I) A lease liability, which is a lessee's obligation to make lease payments arising from a 
lease, measured on a discounted basis; and (2) A right-of-use asset, which is an asset that represents the lessee's 
right to use., or control the use o f, a specified asset for the lease tenn. Under the new guidance, lessor accounting is 
largely unchanged. Ce11ain targeted improvements were made to align, where necessary, lessor accounting with the 
lessee accounting model and Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers. The amendments in this ASU are 
effective for liscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including interim periods within those fiscal ye.ars. 
Early application is permiucd upon issuance. Lessees (for capiral and operating leases) and lessors (for sales-type, 
direct financing, and operating leases) mus, apply a modified retrospective transition approach for leases existing at, 
or entered into after, the beginning of the earlies comparative period presented in the financial statements. The 
modified retrospective approach would not require any trnnsition accounting for leases that expired before the 
earlies comparative period presented. Lessees and lessors may not apply a full retrospective transition approach. 
The Company is currently assessing the impact that ASU 2016-02 will have on its consolidated financial statements. 

During Jw1e 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016- 13, '"Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): 
Measuremenl of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments." ASU 2016• I 3 requires the measurement of all expected 
credit losses for financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions. and 
reasonable and supportable forecasts and requires enhanced disclosures related to rhc significant estimates and 
judgments used in estimating credit losses, as well as the credit quality and undenvriting standards of an 
organization~s portfolio. In addition, ASU 2016-13 amends the accounting for credit losses on available-for-sale 
debt securities and purchased financial assets with credit deterionuion. ASU 2016- 13 will be effective for U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) filers for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, 
beginning a fter December 15, 2019. For public companies that are not SEC filers, the amendments in this ASU are 
effective for liscal years, and interim periods within those liscal years, beginning after December 15, 2020. The 
Company is currently evaluating the potential impact of ASU 2016-13 on our consolidated linancial statements. We 
are currently working through our implementation plan which inc ludes assessment and documentation of processes, 
internal controls and data l'.i0urces; model development and documentation~ and systems coofiguration. among other 
ti1fogs. \1/e are also in the process of implementing a third-party ve-ndor solution to assist us in the applic-ation of the 
ASU 2016- 13. 

The adoption of the ASU 2016-1 3 could result in an increase in the allowance for loan losses as a result of changing 
from an " incurred loss" model. which encompasses allowances for current known and inherent losses within the 
portfolio, to an '"expected loss" model, which encompasses allowances for losses expected to be incurred over the 
life o f the portfolio. Furthennore, ASU 2016-13 will necessitate tha, we esrablish an allowance for expected credit 
losses for certain debt securilies and other financiaJ assets. While we are currently unable to reasonably es1imate- tbe 
impact of adopting ASU 2016-13, we expect rhat rhe impacl of adoption will be significantly influenced by rhe 
composition, characteristics and quality of our loan and securities portfolios as well as the prevailing economic 
conditions and forecasts as of the adoption date. 

Financial Statement Presentation 

Certain amounts in the prior years• financial statements have been reclassified to conform LO the current ye-.ar's 
presen1ation. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 2. Investment Securities 

Securities available for sale are as follows: 

December 31 , 2018 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 
Cost Gains Losses 

Obligations of U.S. Go\'ernmen1 
agencies and corporalions s 9,469,319 5 46,713 s (95,660) s 

Obligations of States and 
political subdivisions 21,383,017 139,006 (425,575) 

Mortgage-backed securities 19,942.155 14 ,643 (553,197) 
Gquiwsccuritics 1.soo,000 (120,137) 

s 52,294,491 s 200.362 s (1,194,569) s 

December 31. 2017 
Gross Gross 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized 
Cost Gains Losses 

Obliga1ions of U.S. Government 
agencies and corporations 9,032.578 s s (99,657) $ 

Obligations of States and 
political sulxll\faions 18,482,221 222.477 (1 48.896) 

Mortgage-backed securities 17.991.213 29.420 (277,074) 
~uit~sccuritics 1,500.000 (71.34 1 l 

47,006.012 s 251.897 s (596.168) $ 

Fair 
Value 

9,420,372 

21,096,448 
19,403,601 
1,379.863 

51,300.284 

Fair 
Value 

8,932,92 1 

18.556.602 
17,743,559 

1,428,659 

46,661.74 1 
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OTES TO CO SOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 2. ln\'estment Securities (Continued) 

Gross unrealized losses and fair values, aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual 
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31.2018. are as follows: 

Securities available-for-sale: 

Dec•mbedl. 2018 
Less 1h00 12 months 12 months or more Tolal 

fair Unre~ized Fair Unreali7..t"d Fair Unrcalb:cd 
Value Lou Value Los< Volue Loss 

Oblig.uions of U.S. Government 
agencies and corporatiot1s S 3,972,577 s 17,592 S 5,927,110 s 78,068 9,899,687 95,660 

Mor1gagc~b.1ckcd securities 5,484,532 I 10,915 13,439,754 442,282 18,924,286 553,197 
Obligations of States and 

political subdrvisiQns 9,119,431 80,935 11,977,018 344,640 21 ,096,449 425,575 

Eguit:t: Sccurill!s 1,379,863 120,137 1,.179,863 120,137 
Total securilies wlh unrealized bsses Sl8.576.540 s 209,442 532,723,745 s 985.127 S 51.300,285 S 1.194,569 

For individual securities classified as either available for sale or held to maturity, the Bank must determine whether 
a decline in fair value below the amortized cost basis is other than temporary. In estimating other-than-temporary 
impainnent losses, management considers. among other things. (i) the length of time and the extent to which the fair 
value has been less than cost, (ii) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (iii) the intent 
and ability o f the Bank to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of Lime sumcicnt to a llow for any 
anticipated recovery in fair value. If the decline in fair value is considered 10 be other than temporary, the cost basis 
of the individual security shall be written down to the fair value as a new cost basis and the amount of the write­
down shall be included in earnings (that is. accoL1ntcd for as a realized loss). 

At December 31 , 2018 there were s ix agency securities, fourteen mortgage-backed securities (MBS), nine 
collatcrali,.cd mortgage obligations (CMO). twenty municipal securities, and one equity investment that have been 
in a continuous unrealized loss position for more than twelve months. As o f December 31, 2018, management also 
believes it has the ability and intent to hold the securities for a period of time sufficient for a recovery of cost. 

Dllring the period ending December 3 1, 2018, the Bank did not sell any securities. During 2017, the Bank sold two 
securities resulting in a net loss of$7,974. Four securities were either mantred or called during 2018, resulting in no 
gain or loss. Three st."Curities were either matured or called during 2017, resulting in a net gain ofS 120. 

Contractual maturities of investment securities al December 3 1, 2018 are shown below. Actual maturities may 
differ from contractual maturities because debtors may have the right to ct1ll or prepay obligations with or without 
call or prepayment penalties . Mortgage-backed securities have no s tated maturity and primarily rcncct investments 
in various Pass-through and Panicipation Certificates issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association and the 
Government National Mortgage Association. Repayment of mortgage-backed securities is affected by the 
contractual repayment terms of the underlying mortgages collatcralizing these obligations and the currcn1 level of 
interes1 rates. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLCDATED FINANCIAL ST AT EMENTS 

Note 2. Investment Securities (Continued) 

The following is a summary of maturities, calls. o r repricing of securities available for sale: 

December31,2018 
Securities 

Available for Sale 
Amortized Fair 

Cost Value 
Due in one year or less s S,17S,223 s S,166, 17S 
Due after one year through fi ,e years 4,726,945 4,648,996 
Due after fi,e years through ten years 10,566,469 10,521,838 
Due after ten years or more 11 ,883,699 11,559,674 
Mortgage-backed. due in monthly 

installmenls 19,942,155 19,403 601 
s 52,294,491 s 51.300,284 

December 31, 2017 
Securities 

A,ai I able for Sole 
Amortized Fail' 

Cost Value 
Due in one year or less $ 3,479,444 $ 3.467.948 
Due after one year through fi\'C years 9.149,578 9,100,375 
Due aner five years through ten years 7,0 17,986 7,152,837 
Due afier ten years or more 9,367,791 9,197,022 
Mortgage-backed. due in monthly 

installments 17,991,213 17-743.559 
$ 47 ,006.012 $ 46,661,74 1 

The Bank has pledged certain securities as collateral for qualified customers' deposit accounts at December 3 1, 201 8 
and 2017 as follows: 

Amortized cost 
Fair ,,aluc 

s 
2018 

8,S96,S02 
8,632,414 

2017 
7,654,104 
7.829,179 
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NOTES TO CO SOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 3. Loans, Allowance for Credit Losses and Impaired Loans 

Major categories of loans as of December 3 1 are as follows: 

20 18 2017 

Originated Loans 

Othe r real estate secured s 356,141,275 $ 314,179,74 1 
I - 4 Family residential sec ured 116,770,781 I I 0,843,248 
Othe r 48,259,6 11 44,380,854 

521,871,667 469,403 ,843 

Acquired Loans 
Othe r real estate secured s 70,080,062 $ 

I - 4 Family residential secured 29,532,014 
Othe r 12419883 

112,031 ,959 
Total Loans 

Othe r real estate secured s 426,221,337 $ 314,179,74 1 

I - 4 Family residential secured 146,302,795 I I 0 ,843,248 

Othe r 61J79,494 44,380,854 

633,903,626 469,403 ,843 

Less: Unamortized discounts on acquired loans (1,326,969) 
Less: Allowance for loan losses {7,063J I0) (6,702,599) 

s 625~13c!47 s 462.70 1.244 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

Management has an established methodology to dctcnninc the adequacy of the a llowance for loan losses thaz 
assesses the risks and losses inherent in the loan portfolio. For purposes of dctcnnining the allowance for loan 
losses, the Bank has segmented the loan portfolio into the following c lassifications: 

Other Real Estate Secured 
o Commercial Real Estate 
o Constrnction and Land Development 
o Fazmland 
o Mullifamily 

I - 4 Family Residential Secured 

Other 
o Commercial and Industrial 
o Consumer Loans 
o Other Loans 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Nole 3. Loans, Allowance for Credit Losses and Impair ed Loans 

Each of these segments are reviewed and analy:,ed quarterly using the weighted average historical charge-om over a 
current three year period for their respective segments as well as the following qualitative factors: 

Changes in the levels and trends in delinquencies, non-accruals. classified assets and troubled debt 
restmcturings 
Changes in lhe nature and volume of the portfolio 
Effects of any changes in lending policies. procedures, including underwriting standards and collections, 
charge orr and recovery practices 
Changes in the experience. depth and ability of management 
Changes in the national and local economic conditions and developments, including the condition of 
various market segments 
Changes in the concentration of credits within each pool 
Changes in the quality of the Bank's loan review system and the degree of oversight by the Board 
Changes in external factors such as competition and the legal environment 

The above factors result in a FAS 5, as codified in F ASB ASC 450- 10- 20, calculated reserve for environmental 
factors. 

All credit exposures graded at a rating of"5". "6", "7" or "8" with outstanding bahmces less tlian $250,000 and 
credit exposures graded ac a rating of"I'', "2", "3'' or "4" are reviewed and analyzed quarterly using the weighted 
average historical charge-offs over a current three year period as a percentage of total charge-offs for the same 
period for their respective segments as well as the qualitative factors discussed above. The weighted average 
historical percentage is further adjusted based on delinquency risk trend assessments and concentration risk 
assessments. 

All credit exposures b'Taded at a rating of"5", "6", "7" or "8" with outstanding balances greater ci1an $250,000 are to 
be reviewed no less than quarterly for the purpose or detem1ining if a specific allocation is needed for that credit. 
The detennination for a specific reserve is measured based on the present value of expected future cash flows, 
discounted at tJ1e loan's effective interest rate, except when the sole (remaining) source of repayment for the loan is 
the ope-ration or liquidation oft.he collate-ml. ln these cases management uses the cuJTent fair value-of the collateral, 
less selling cost when foreclosure is probable, instead of discounted cash flows. lfmanagemelll determines that the 
value of the loan is kss than the recorded investment in the loan (net of previous charge-offs, deferred loan fees or 
costs and unamortized premium or discount), impairment is recognized through an allowance estimate or a charge­
off 10 the allowance. 

The establishment ofa specific reserve does not necessarily me.an that the credit with the specific reserve will 
definitely incur loss at the reserve level. It is only an estimation of potential loss based upon anticipated events. A 
specific reserve will not be established unless loss elements can be detertnined and quamified based on known facts. 
The total allowance reflects management's estimate of loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio as of December 3 1. 
2018 and 2017. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEME TS 

Note 3. Loans, Allowance for Credit Losses and Impaired Loans (Continued) 

The following table presents the total allowance by loan segment. 

Other 1-4 Family 
Real Estate Resi denli al 

Secured Secured Other Unallocated Total 

Balance al December 31 , 2017 s 3,857,599 1,744,000 536,000 s 56S,000 s 6,702,599 

Charge-offs - originated loans (510,854) (352,578) (289,425) (1,152,857) 

Rec.ovcries - originated loans 89,700 I 50,620 98,248 338,S68 

Pro\rision - originated loans 839,55S I 00,958 309,177 (74,690) 1,175,000 

Allowance allocation adjustment (9,229) (6,632) (16,416) (32,277) 

Total Allowance on originated loans 4,266,771 1,636,368 637,584 490,310 7,031,033 

Charge-offs- acquired loans 

Recoveries - acquired loans 

Provision- acquired loans 

Allowance allocation adjustment 9,229 6,632 16,416 32,277 

Total Allowance on acquired loans 9,229 6,632 16,416 32,277 

Balance at December 31 2018 s 4,276,000 1,643,000 654,000 s 490,310 s 7,063"110 

lndividuall)·evaluated for impairment: 

Balance in allowance s 278,083 $ S85,748 177,96S s s 1,041,796 

Related loan balance 14,947,227 8,774,800 1,732,429 25,454,456 

Collectively evaluated for impairmenl: 

Balance in allowance s 3,997,917 1,057,252 476,03S s 490,310 s 6,021,514 

Related loan balance 410,527,078 137,191,904 59,403,219 607,122,201 

Note: The balances above include unamortized discounts on acquired loans of $1,329,969. 

Other I. 4 Family 
Real Estate Residential 

Secured Secured Other Unallocated Total 

Balance al December 31, 2016 s 3,392,596 $ 2,140,000 588,000 s 265,000 6,385,596 

Charge-offs (335,831) (339,890) (290,873) (966,594) 

Rcco,trics 234,948 21,819 81,830 338,597 

Pro,ision 565,886 (77,929) 157,043 300,000 945,000 

Balance al December 3 I , 2 0 I 7 s 3,857,599 $ 1,744,000 536,000 s 565,000 6,702,599 

lndi,idually e,~luated for impairment: 

Balanc-e in allowance s 372,726 766,955 s 1,139,681 

Related loan balance 12,481,262 7,759,545 23 1,861 20,472,668 

Collecti,dy evaluated for impainnent: 

Balance in allowance s 3,484,873 $ 977,045 536,000 s 565,000 5,562,918 

Related loan balance 30 I ,698,4 79 103,083,703 44,148,993 448,931,175 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED .FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 3. Loans, Allowance for Credi! L-Osses and Impaired Loans (Continued) 

The Bank had an unallocated amoum (overage) of approximately $490,000 in the allowance that is reflected in the 
above table as of December 31, 2018. The Bank had an unallocated amount (overage) of approximately $565,000 in 
the allowance lhat is reflected in the above 1able as of December 31, 2017. Management is comfortable with this 
amount as they feel it is adequate to absorb additional inherent potential losses in the loan portfolio. 

Credit Quality lnfonnation 

The following table represents credit exposures by credit:wonhiness category for the period ending December 3 1, 
2018. The use of creditwonhincss categories 10 grade loans permits management 10 estimate a portion of credit risk. 
The Bank's internal creditw011hiness is based on experience with similarly graded credits. Loans that trend upward 
toward higher credit grades typically have less credit risk and loans that migrate downward typically have more 
credit risk. 

The Bank's internal risk ratings are as follows: 

Excellent - minimal risk. (normally supponcd by pledged deposits. United S tates government securities, 
etc.) 

2 Superior- low risk. (all of the risks associa,ed wilh this credit based on each of the bank's creditworthiness 
crite1ia are. mjnjmal) 

3 Good - moderately low risk. (most of the risks associated with this credit based on each of the bank's 
crcditworLhincss criteria arc minimal) 

4 Fair/Watch - moderate risk. (the weighted overall risk associated with this credit based on each of the 
bank's crcditwon hincss criteria is acceptable) 

5 lvlarginal - mcxlerately high risk. (possesses deficiencies which coITective ,1ction by the bank would 
remedy; potential watch list) 

6 Substnndard - (tbe bank is inadequately protected and there exists the distinct poss ibility o f sustaining 
some loss if not corrected) 

7 Doubtful - (weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, based on currently existing facts. 
improbable) 

8 Loss - (oflittle value; not warranted as a bankable asset) 

Non-accnials 

In general, a loan will be placed on non-accrnal status at the end of the reporting month in which the interest or 
principal is past due more than 90 days . Exceptions to the policy are those loans that are in the process of collection 
and are well secured. A well-secured loan is secured by collateral with sufficient market value lo repay principal 
and all accrued interest. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINA 'ClAL ST ATEME 'TS 

Note 3. Loans, Allowance for Credit Losses and Impaired Loans (Continued) 

A summary of loans by risk rating is as follows: 

1-4 Family 
Other Real Residential 

December 31, 2018 Estate Secured Secured Other Tot.a.I 
•:xcellent $ 1,142,530 $ - s 9,756,062 $ 10,898,592 
Superior 7,523,315 266,516 2,014,925 9,804,756 

Good 402,092,509 133,401,022 45,802,235 581,295,766 
Fair 8,083,929 4,598,314 2,105,674 14,787,9 17 

Marginal 406,863 111,786 268,043 786,692 
Substandard 7,071,034 7,589,065 342,835 I 52002,934 

TOTAL $426,320,180 $ 145,966,703 s 60,289,774 $632,576,657 

Non-Accrual $ 4,422,958 s 4,546,889 s 177,965 s 9,147,812 
Troubled debt restructures $ I 0,341,307 $ 7,268,955 s 206,220 $ 17,816,482 

Number oflDR accounts 28 21 3 52 

Breakdown ofIDRs 
ID Rs on Non-accrual $ 2,545,978 s 3,290,222 s 175,424 $ 6,011,624 
ID Rs Pust Due 30-89 639,929 30,796 670,725 

Per forming IDRs 7,155,400 3,978,733 11,134,133 
TOTAL $ I 0,341,307 s 7,268,955 s 206,220 $ 17,816,482 

Total Non-performing IDR accounts $ 3,185,907 $ 3,290,222 s 206,220 $ 6,682,349 
Number ofnon-eerforming IDRs 10 10 3 23 

1-4 Family 
Other Real Res idential 

December 3I,201 7 Estate Secured Secured Other Total 
Excellent $ 625,329 $ $ 5,378,931 s 6,004,260 
Superior 8 ,110,900 174,212 507,889 8,793,00 1 

Good 287,176,446 98,6 18,796 37,040,922 422,836,164 
Fair 10,298.246 4,687,720 958,592 15,944,558 

Marginal 4 11,409 I 12,509 140,000 663,918 
Substandard 7.557,411 7.250,01 I 354.520 15,161,942 

lOTAL $314.1 79,74 1 $ 110.843,248 s 44,380,854 $ 469,403.843 

Non-Accrual s 2,938,218 $ 1,548,668 s $ 4,486,886 
Troubled debt restructures $ I 0,3 15,841 s 7,692,542 s 182,602 $ 18, 190,985 
Number of TOR accounts 26 19 2 47 

Breakdown ofTDRs 
lDRs on Non-accrual s 1.707.672 $ 1,053,940 s $ 2,761,612 
TDRs Past Due 30-89 1.471 ,940 4,093,902 139,882 5,705,724 

Pcrfom1ing TDRs 7,136,229 2,544,700 42,720 9,723,649 
lOTAL s 10,3 I 5,841 s 7,692,542 s 182,602 $ 18, 190,985 

Total Non-pcrfonning TOR accounts $ 3.179,612 $ 5,147,842 $ 139,882 $ 8,467,336 
Number of non-~rfonning TDR.s 7 14 22 
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Note 3. Loans, Allowance for Credit Losses and Impaired Loans (Continued) 

The following table includes an aging analysis of the recorded investment of past due financing receivables as of 
December 31. 2018 and 2017: 

30-59 OaJS Pa;t 60 -89 Oa)> P211 Gru1rr1h,n 90 
Dectmber31 ,lil8 Due Out Da1'$ P21t Due• Total P,sr Due 
Oth<r R,~ E!tale 

Se<urNI 876,434 1,141,807 $ 3,ll9J54 $ 5,747.495 

I -4 family Residential IJ91,783 JSJ,046 1,lll,032 3,396,861 
Otber 1,035,158 33,336 l6U43 1,336,531 

TOTAL 3J03J15 !,J;S.189 5,1 J9Jl9 10.480,893 

. Includes $4,513,269 of non-accrual loans, 
These balances do not include unamortized discounts of SJ,329.969. 

J0-59 Da)sPast 60-89 Dais Past Grealerthan90 
D,combcrJUOl7 Dile D"' ll3)s Pas10t<' Tornl PastD"' 

Otl>:r Re,I Eitwe S«ured S 1.il l,701 966,488 3399244 6,937,4]] 
I -4Family Residential J.069290 2.781.736 W4,513 6,656,598 

Otl>,r 403.715 2,582 406197 
TOTAL 6,044.706 l.149124 4106,399 14,000328 

• Includes $2,872,525 of non-accrual loans, 

Impaired Loans 

Currtnl 
Balance 

$420,413,842 

142,905,934 
60~42~57 

S6!Wl.733 

Cirrenl 

Bal•~· 
$30))42,308 

104,186,650 
4B14,557 

$455,403,515 

Tot:J.I f inancing 
Rtte-i,-ables •• 

426Jll,337 

146,,102,795 
61,319.494 

633,903~26 

Total Finar.:ing 
Receilllbles 

]14,179,741 
110,843) 48 
44J80,854 

469,403,843 

R,eorded 
lnwstownt > 

90 lla)>Plst 

Due and 
Actruine 

338,011 

268,043 
606,060 

Recorded 
lll\,,;tment> 
90 Dais Past 

o.,aoo 
Accruing 

! 1,011,44i 
309.MS 

2,582 
1 1,mm 

Impaired loans are defined as non-accrual loans, troubled debt rcstmcturings, purchase credit impaired loans ("PCI") 
and loans risk rated a ''6'' or above. \Vhen management identi fies a loan as impaired, the impainnenl is measured 
for potential loss based on the present value o f expected future cash flows. discounted al the loan' s efTec1ive interes1 
ra te, except when the sole (remaining) source of repayrnen1 for the loan is the operat ion or liquidation of the 
co llatera l. In these cases management used the current fai r value of the collateral, less selling cost when foreclosure 
is probable, instead of d iscounted cash tlows. If management detcnnines tha t the value of the impaired loan is less 
than the recorded investment in the loan (net of previous charge-off.°', deferred loan fees o r costs and unamortized 
premium or discount), impairment is recognized through an allowance estimate or a charge.off to the allowance. 

When the u lt imate collectability o f the total principal o f an impaired loan is in d oubt and the loan is o n non-accrual 
~ta tus, all payments a rc applied to principal, under the cost recovery method. \Vhen the u ltimate colle:.'Ctability o f the 
total principa l ofan impaired loan is no t in doubt and the loan is o n non-accrual status, contractual interest is 
credited to interest income when received, under the cash bas is method. 
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NOTES TO CO SOLIDATEO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 3. Loans, Allowance for C redit Losses and Impaired Loans (Conlinued) 

The following table includes the recorded investment and unpaid principal balances for impaired financing 
receivables with the associated allowance amount, if applicable. Management detennined the specific reserve in the 
allowance based on the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan ·s effective inrerest rate, 
except when the remaining source of repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the collateral. In those 
cases, the current fair value of the collateral, less selling costs was used to detennine the specific allowance 
recorded. 

Also presented are die average recorded investments in the impaired loans and the related amount of interest 
recognized during the time within the period that the impaired loans were impaired. When 1he ultllm1te 
collectabil ity of the total principal of an impaired loan is in doubt and the loan is on non-accrual status, all payments 
arc applied to principal, under the cost recovery method. 

Uopaid Prindp,1 ln1mstln<ornr Amagt RemdNI 
Dmmb,rJJ,2018 Recorded lnmtm,nt B~IDct Rer!!J:ni1td ~<i6,Resm, l11restm,nt 

lmp,ir,d loam with !petifi, r11mt1: 

Othfr Rt1l Estat,Securtd J,216,082 J,276,081 246,460 s 412,.JJI s 3,689,910 

1 • 4 family R11idt11ial SttarNI J,947,.1;9 4,01;,m IJJ.648 sgs,748 4,989,.JM 

Othfr 4J,71J 43,717 1,574 43,717 11,859 

Total imp~red loans •·itb sp1ci6, mm1 S 1)67,158 7,.194,861 421,682 1,041,796 8,701,194 

Impaired loans ~ilh no sped fir restn't: 

Othfr Rral Estat, Sec,nd ll,848,564 IJ,905,179 1,01;,SJ; 10,690,806 

1-4 familyR11idt11ial Sttmd 5,761,271 7,011,277 256,019 J,901,900 

Othfr 1,so;,018 1~05,018 111~76 1~79,769 

Total im~~red loans •·itb oo <ll!ci6, "" S l0,41U5J ll,Jll,474 i,.183,8)0 15,612,474 
IDTAL ll,682,011 J0,11 6,.138 1,805,.\ll 1,041,796 !4,JJ3,M8 

Total impaired loans of $27,682,011 at December 3 I, 2018 include PC! loan balances of $1,109,739, which are net 
of a discount of $582,062. Total impaired loans also included SI, 117,816 of loans which did not meet the crite ria 
whereby an individual evaluation for impairment was required. These loans were pooled with all other loans not 
requiring an evaluation for individual impairment and reviewed and analyzed using the weighted average historical 
charge-offs over a current three year period for their respective segments along with the qualitative factors stated 
previous ly in this disclosure, to result in a ASC 450-10-20 (FAS 5) calculated reserve. 

~~d Prio:ijXtl 1nt,res1 lo:ome Awrag, Rec01ded 
Dcc,mi,,,,Ji.lOIJ Recorded ~"stmeut B,Jao:, Recoo ~cifi, Resent Ut\CSUoell 

Wl"ired loans ~i,b sp,cifi, resern:s: 

Otl>., Re31 E;1rue Secutcd 4.IOJJ57 4143,90$ 174,90i )72}16 4110,1)4 

I • 4 family ResiderJi~ Seemed 6,031,372 6.798.449 lll.854 766,955 5.787312 
()t,r 43.641 

Tot~ im('liml loans •ith s,«ific re,m,,. 10,1)5129 11.041357 396,759 1,139,681 10,101.548 
•"d loans ~i,b no s,«if~ resern,: 

Oti,,r Re31 E;true Sttuttd 8.i)J,047 8,615,541 790.684 11,040.502 

I · 4 family ResideBial Sttmed l.04l,ll8 2,138.675 121142 3.032,101 

Other )54.510 354,510 15.411 )79.498 

Tot~ iml')ired loans •ith Ill S!',t'ific resern: S 10,930,095 11.108.736 9Ji.347 14.452.102 
TOTAL s 21.065,)14 12,151 ,09) 1,334,106 1,1)9,681 24.55),650 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 3. Loans, Allowance for C redit Losses and Impaired Loans (Continued) 

All acquired loans were initially recorded at fair value at the acquisition date. The outslanding balance and the 
carrying amount of acquired loans included in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows: 

Accountable fortmder ASC 3 I 0-30 (PC! loans) 
Outstanding balance 
Carrying amo tmt 

Accouniablc for under ASC 310-20 (non-PC! loans) 
Outstanding balance 
Carrying ammmt 

Total acquired loans 
Outstanding balance 
Carrying amount 

December 3 1 2018 

s 1,691,801 
1, 109,739 

s I I 0,340,158 
109,595,251 

s 11 2,031,959 
I I 0, 704,990 

The following table provides changes in accretablc yield for all acquired loans accounted for under ASC 310-20: 

December 3 1, 2018 

Balance at beginning of period 
Acquisitions 

Accretion 

Balance at end of period 

$ 

s 

Non-accretable yield on purchased credit impaired loans was $462,580 at December 31, 2018. 

1,702,914 
(958,007) 

744,907 

The Bank makes loans to customers located primarily within Wicomico and \Vorcester Counties, Maryland, Sussex 
County, Delaware and Camden and Burlington Counties, New Jersey. A substantial p0rtion of its loan portfolio 
consists of residential and commercial real estate mortgages. 

Included in the amounts listed above are loans receivable from directors, principal officers, and stockholders of 
$S, 179,000 and S7 ,266,000 at December 3 I , 2018 and 20 I 7, respectively. During 20 I 8 loan additions totaled 
$120,000. There were no new loans during 2017. During 2018 and 2017 repayments totaled $2,207,000 and 
$669,000, respectively. These loans were made in the ordinary course of business on substantially the same terms 
and conditions as those prevailing at the same time for comparnble transactions with other customers, including 
interest rates and collateral. They do not involve more than normal risk of collectability or present other unfavorable 
terms. 

The Bank had no commitments to loan additional funds to the borrowers of restructured, impaired, or non-accrual 
loans as of December 31, 20 18. 



 31 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 4. Premises, Equipment and Depreciation 

A summary of premises and equipment, at cost, and accumulated depreciation is as follows: 

Land 
Buildings and improvcn,cn1s 
Furniture and equipment 
Total premises and equipment 
Less: acc,m,ulated deprecia1 ion 
Net premises and equipment s 

2018 
2,752,560 $ 

8,724,280 
12,841,417 
24,318,257 
14,270,297 

2017 
1,752,560 
6.607,491 
8.491.564 

16.85 1.615 
9.0 10.145 

10,047,960 S 7,84 1.470 

Depreciation expense totaled S925,314 and $590,060 for the years ended December 31, 2018, and 2017, 
respectively. 

Note 5. Income Taxes 

Components of income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

2018 2017 2016 
Currem 

Federal s 64,391 $ 2,774,373 $ 1,760,954 
State 8 12.;)65 56R.378 398,602 

Tomi currcnl 876,756 3,342.75 1 2.159.556 

Deferred income tax (liabilities) benefiLS: 
Federal 1,586,095 26,424 86,356 
S1ate ! I 04,323) !154,1 14) 129,446 

Tomi deferred 1,481.772 ( 127.690) 215,802 

Income tax exe!:nse s 2.358,528 $ 3,2 15.06 1 $ 2,375.358 

A reconciliation of tax computed al Lhc Federal s1atu1ory income tax rate of2 11% to the acLual expense for the year 
ended December 31, 20 I 8, as well as 34% for the years ended December 31, 20 I 7 and 2016 is as follows: 

2018 2017 2016 
Tax at Federal s lalulory income tax rate $ 1,646,666 s 2,254,01 I $ 2,173,649 
Tax e ffccl of: 

Tax exempt income (89,194) (372,271) (348.290) 
One-time adjustment to deferred rnx asset due lO 

the Tax Cuts and Jobs Ace o f 20 17 762,784 
Ocher 241,703 156,274 21.952 

Staie income 1.axes. nel of Federal tax beuelit 559.;)53 41 4.263 528-047 
Income UL~ ex~nse s 2.;)58,528 $ 3,215,061 $ 2.375.358 
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Notes. Income T axes (Continued) 

Income taxes included in the balance sheetS are as follows: 

2018 2017 
Federal income tax. ~.ible $ $ 768.802 
State franchise lax recei,1"tble and ere~1id state taxes (249,877! (56.622) 
Deferred income ta.x assets: 

Allowance for credi1 losses and unfunded commiunems $ 1,168,851 $ 681.105 
Net operati□g loss carryforward 1,948,709 99,038 
Accumulated amorti:zation on intangibles 35,629 42,778 
Impairment loss on in~stment securities 26,709 30,994 
Net losses on other real estate owned 1,145,554 1,2 17,239 
Stock op1ion expense 24,843 3.225 
Discounts on acquired loaos 354,420 
Other real estate owned valuation 432,107 
Merger costs 196,803 
Net depreciation o n sccrnitics awilable for sale 263,365 9 I ,355 
Other 21 '82 7.793 

5,421,469 2,370,330 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Accumulated deprecialion 169,891 360,887 
Accumulated amortization on core deposit intangible 285,523 
Deferred gain 135,945 132.677 
Accumulmcd securities discount accrcLion 690 505 

592 049 494.069 
Net deferred income tax asset $ 4,829,420 $ 1,876,261 

The change in net deferred tax assets also includes deferred tax assets recorded in connection with the Liberty Bell 
acquisition of$4,263,0I 2. 

On December 22, 2017 the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act was signed into law which, among other items, reduced the 
corporate tax rate from a graduated set of rates with a maximum of 35% to a nat 21 % beginning with taxable years 
starring after December 31,2017. As required under ASC Topic 740, the Bank re-measured its deferred income tax 
asseLS and liabilities for temporary differences from the current corp0ratc tax rate to the new corporate tax rate of 
21% as of December 31, 2017. The cumulative adjustment was rec-0gnized in income tax expense from continuing 
operations as a discrete item in the period that included the enactment date, December 31, 2017. Beginning in 2018 
the Company's federal statutory tax rate was 2 1 %. 

Management has determined that no valuation allowance is required as it is more likely than not that the deferred tax 
assets will be fully realizable in the future. At December 3 1, 2018 and 2017, management believes there are no 
uncertain tax positions under ASC Topic 740 Income Taxes. The Bank 's Federal and state income tax returns arc 
subject to examination by the IRS and/or state tax authorities. The tax years that remain subject to examination by 
the Federal government and the State of Maryland include the years ended December 3 1, 20 I 5, 20 I 6 and 201 7. The 
tax years that remain subject to examination by the State of New Jersey include the years ended December 31, 2014, 
2015, 2016 and 20 17. The 2018 tax returns will be filed in 2019. 
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Note 6. Deposits 

Time deposits and their remaining maturities at December 31, 2018 are as follows: 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 
2024 and thereafter 
Total time deposits 

S l 10,180.610 
73,689,976 
20,288,223 
29,099,631 
17,726,4 17 

35.144 
S 25 1,020,001 

Interest expense on deposits for the years ended December 3 1, 2018 and 2017 and 2016 is as follows: 

2018 20 17 
NOW $ t 18,031 $ 61,052 $ 

Money market 201,875 133.016 
Savings 96,009 79.707 
Time. S l 00,000 or more 1,691,699 760,380 
01her time 1,682.747 974.8 19 

$ 3,790,361 s 2,008,974 $ 

2016 
3 1,667 

132,401 
73,277 

735,363 
1,125,089 
2,097,797 

Deposit balances of officers and directors and their affiliated interes1s totaled approxima1ely S7,009,000 and 
$4,938,000 as of December 3 l, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Deposi1 accounts in an overdraft position torn led approximately $255,000 and $261,000 as of December 3 1, 2018 
and 2017, respectively. 

Some of the Company's CD deposits are through participa1ion in the Certilica1e of Deposit Account Registry 
Service (CDARS). These deposi1s totaled $2,145,571 and $5,345,62 1 at December 3 I, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

Note 7. Other Income 

Other income consists of the following: 

Inves1111ent fees and commissions 
&lfe deposit box renLals 
Visa debit income 
Other non-int.crest income 

2018 
$ 64,160 

45,2 15 
871,708 
8 17.066 

$ 1,798,149 

2017 20 16 
$ 98,194 $ 143,477 

42.377 43. 149 
765,987 734,163 
605.256 523.358 

$ 1,5 11,8 14 $ 1,444,147 
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Note 8. Credit Facilities 

The Bank owns capital stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (FHLB) as a condition for a $184,445,750 
convertible advance credit facility from the FHLB. As of December 3 I , 2018, the Bank had remaining credit 
availability of Sl33,956,82 I under this facility. 

In June 2005. the Bank borrowed $5,000,000 from the FHLB with interest payable quarterly fixed at 3.78% through 
June 20 I 0, maturing in June 20 I 5. The FHLB had the option of converting the rate on this borrowing 10 a three 
month UBOR based floating rate in 2010, however it chose not to do so, therefore the rate on this borrowing would 
have remained at 3.78% until maturity. During 2012, this borrowing was restructured to a three month LIBOR based 
floating rate for the first two years, tl1en adjusting to 1.83% until manirity in December 2018. Due to a prepayment 
penalty of$405,0J I , which was amortized to final maLUrity as an adjustment 10 interest expense, the effective rate 
was the three month LIBOR based floating rate plus 1.35% for the first two years, adjusting to 3.18% until rnarurity. 
As o f December 31, 2018 the premium was fully amortized. 

In September 2005, the Bank borrowed an additional $5,000,000 with interest payable quarterly fixed at 4.06% 
through September 2009, maturing in September 2015. The FHLB had the option of converting the rate on this 
borrowing to a three month LIBOR based floating rate in 2009, however it chose not to do so, therefore the rate on 
this borrowing would have remained at 4.06% until maturity. During 20l2, this borrowing was restructured to a 
three month LIBOR based floating rate for the first two years, then adj usting 10 1.83% until maturity in December 
2018. Due to a prepayment penalty of $500,195, which was amortized to final maturity as an adjustment to interest 
expense, the effective rate was the three month LIBOR based floating rate plus 1.67% for the first two years, 
adjusting to 3.50% until marurity. As of December 31 , 2018 the premium was fully amortized. 

In September 2006, the Bank borrowed an additional S5,000,000 with interest payable quarterly fixed at 4.57% 
through September 2011, maturing in September 2016. The f'HLB has the option o f converting the rate on this 
long-term borrowing lo a three month LIBOR-based floating rate in 20 I l , however it chose not to do so, therefore 
the ra te on this borrowing would have remained at 4.57% until maturity. During 2012. this borrowing was 
restrucn1red to a three month LIBOR based floating rate for the first two years, then adjusting to 1.83% until 
maturity in December 2018. Due to a prepayment penally ofS740,365, which was amortized to final maturity as an 
adjustment to interest expense, the effective rate was the three month LIBOR based floating rate plus 2.47% for the 
ftrst two years, adjusting t0 4.30% until maturity. As of December 3 1. 2018 the premium was fully amorti,cd. 

In May 2015, the Bank borrowed an additional SI 0,000,000 with interest payable quarterly fixed at 1.08%, maturing 
in May 2020. The HILB had the option of converting the rate on this long-term borrowing to a three month 
LIBOR-based floating rate at any time. In May of 2018 the FH LB exercised the convertible option and the Bank 
paid off the advance. 

In March 2016, the Bank borrowed an additional $3,000,000 with interest payable monthly fixed at 1.62%, maturing 
in March 2023. The principal portion of this borrowing was $ 1,82 1,429 at December 31 , 2018. 

In March 2016, the Bank borrowed an additional $2,300,000 with interest payable monthly lhed at 1.99%, maturing 
in March 2026. The principal portion of this borrowing was S I ,667,500 at December 31, 2018. 

In June 2017, the Bank borrowed an additional S 15,000,000 with interest payable quarterly fixed at 1.51 %, maturing 
in June 2019. 

In May 2018 the Bank borrowed an additional $10,000,000 with interest payable quarterly fixed at $2.68%, 
maruring in May 2021. The HILB has the option of converting the rate on this long-tenn borrowing to a three 
momh LIBOR-based floating rate in May 2020. 

In October 2018, the Bank borrowed an additional $5,000,000 with interest payable quarterly fixed at 3.15%, 
maruring in October 2022. 

In November 2018, the Bank borrowed two additional amounts ofSS,000,000 each with interest payable quarterly 
fixed at 3.04% and 2.91%. Both amounts mature in November 2020. 
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Note 8. Credit Facilities (Continued) 

Average short-tenn borrowing under FHLB approximated $ 1,389,041 and $547,945 for the years ended December 
3 l , 2018 and 2017. respectively. 

The Bank has pledged a portion of its residential and commercial mortgage loan portfolio as collateral for these 
credit faci lities. Principal balances outstanding on these pledged loans totaled approximately $135,318,000 and 
S96, 188,000 at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. 

In addition to the FHLB credit facility, in October 2015, the Company entered into a subordinated loan agreement 
for an aggregate principal amount of$2,000,000. lnterest-only payments are due quarterly at 6.71 % per annum, and 
the outstanding principal balance matures in October 2025. In January 2018, the Company entered in10 a 
subordinated loan agreement for an aggregate principal amount of S4,500,000 to fund the acquisition of Liberty Bell 
Bank, ne-t of loan costs. Interest-only payments are due qum1erly at 6.875% pe.r annum, and the outstanding 
principal balance matures in April 2028. 

The proceeds of these long•tenn borrowings were ge.nerally used to purchase higher yielding investment securities. 
fund additional loans, re-deem prefen-ed stock, or fund acquisitions. Additionally, the Bank has secured credit 
availability of $5,000,000 with a correspondent bank for short-term liquidity needs, if necessary. This faci lity must 
be collateralized by specific securiLies at the time of any usage. At December 31, 2018, there were no borrowings 
outstanding, and securit ies pledged under this credit facili ty had an amortized cost and fair value of$7,988 and 
S9,059, respectively. Al December, 2017 there were no borrowings outstanding, and securities pledged under this 
credit facility had an amortized cost and fai r value of $9,873 and SI 1,415, respectively. 

Maturities on long•tcnn debt over the next five years arc as follows: 

Note 9. Profit Sharing Plan 

20 19 
2020 

2021 
2022 

2023 

$ I 5,658,572 
10,658,572 

10,658,572 
5,658,572 

694,286 

The Bank has a defined contribution 40 1 (k) profit sharing plan covering subs~1ntially all foll-time employees. 
Under the 401 (k) provision the Bank is currently ma1ching 50% of employee contributions of up to 6% of their 
compensation as defined under the plan. Additional employer contributions are a, the discretion of the Board of 
Dircc1ors. The Bank's contribu1ions to this plan totaled $169,467, $ 124,493 and $111,814, and for the years ended 
December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016. respectively. 
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Note 10. Lease Commitment 

The Bank has a branch facility lease for its Seaford, Delaware branch through December 3 1, 2023. The Bank also 
has a fifteen-year land lease for its Rehoboth, Delaware branch, with (5) five-year renewal options for a total of 
twenty-five years, which began in 2000. In 2008 the Bank entered into a six-year lease agreement for its North 
Ocean City branch with an eight-year renewal option, for a total of 14 years. In February 2014, this renewal option 
was exercised. In March 2016, the Bank renewed the Ocean City lease, extending the maturity date from October 
3 1. 2019 to Oct0bcr 3 1, 2022. The Sank has the option to extend the lease for an additional five-year period. In 
December 2016 the Bank entered into a three-year agreement for its Rehoboth loan office with a three-year renewal 
option. In October 2017 the Bank entered into a live-year agreement for its West Ocean City branch beginning in 
January 2018, with three five-year renewal options. In August 2017 the Bank entered into a five-year agreement for 
the Accounting Department at the Plaza wilh two additional five•year renewal options. Rent expense under this 
agreement did not commence until April of 2018, once renovations to rhe space were complete. In August 2018 the 
Bank entered into a thirty-month agreement for basement storage at tl1e Plaza build ing. The te11ns of the agreement 
stipulated that the first s ix months of rents would be waived by the lessor and the remaining two years of payments 
would be due upon s igning the lease. In December of2018 the Bank entered into a two-year agreement for space on 
the second floor of the Rehoboth loan office with a three-year renewa l option. With the acquisition of Liberty Bell 
Bank in 2018 the Bank assumed three separate leases pertaining to two branches located in New Jersey. The Cherry 
Hill branch has two leases, one for the main branch and one for additional space located in the same building. Both 
leases expire in May 2020. T11e other assumed lease- is for the Moorestown branch location, which expires in 
January 2021 and includes a five-year renewal option. Rent expense under these arrangements was $5 14,910, 
$227,817 and $203,838 for the years ended December 3 1, 2018, 2017, and 2016, respectively. 

Minimum lease payments for the next five years! assuming renewal options are exercised, are approximately as 
follows: 

20 19 
2020 
202 1 
2022 

2023 

Note 11. Other O1>erating •:xpenses 

Other operating expenses include the following: 

Professional services 

Stationery, printing and s uppl ies 
Postage and de li very 

FDIC assessment 
State bank assessment 
Directors fees and expenses 
Marketing 
Correspondent bank services 
ATl\'1 expenses 
Telephones and mobile devices 

Members hip dues and fees 
i,egal fees 
Audit and related professional fees 
insurance 
Bank acquisit ion costs (See Note 20) 
Other 

$ 

2018 

$ 308,761 
281,932 
180,863 
583,5 12 

2,835 
297,725 
267,489 

84,327 
703,214 
432,498 

80,578 
273,088 
111,698 
t 77,608 

t ,636,648 
2 154 620 

$ 7,577,396 

495,5 15 

433,376 
390,073 
393,715 

403,462 

20 17 

s 182,423 
151,711 
136.277 
352.981 

1.000 
209,650 
259,183 
68,526 

590,110 
256,771 

62,373 
108.4 17 
170.288 
I 18.935 
787,350 

1,8 12.166 

s 5,268,161 

2016 

s 119,552 
149,273 
146.495 
357,806 

1.000 
229.176 
226.466 

76,367 
572,539 
164,276 
59,460 

285,735 
94,t75 

130.1 10 

I 732.780 

$ 4,345,2 10 
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Note 12. Stock Option Plans 

Delmar Bancom Stock Option Plan 

The Bank has employee and director s1ock op Lion plans and has reserved 18,409 shares of slock for issuance 
thereunder. Op1ions gran1cd under these plans have a ten-year li fe wiLh a four•ycar vesting period that begins one 
year after date of grant, and are exercisable at a price equal to the fair value of the Company's stock on the date of 
the grant. Each award from all plans is evidenced by an award agreement that specifies the option price, the 
duration of the option, the number of shares to which the option pertains, and such other provisions as the grantor 
detenn ines. The plan tenn ended in 2014, therefore no new options can be granted. 

Options for 18,409 shares were outstanding as follows: 

Em[!lOyees D irectOTS 

A,erage Average 

Shares Price Amount Shares Price Amount 
December 3 I . 20 I 5 86.104 18.0 1 1.550,459 32.764 18.33 600,745 

Forfeited in 2016 (3,212) 19.05 (6 1.1 73) 
December 3 1, 2016 82,892 17.97 $ 1,489.286 32,764 18.33 $ 600,745 

Forfeited in 2017 (32,348) 23.09 !746,925) ( 15,020) 2 1.69 (325,722) 
December 3 1. 20 I 7 50 544 14.69 s 742 36 I 17744 15.50 $ 275 023 

Exerched in 2018 (5,000) 1.98 (9,900) 
Forfeited in 2018 (31,649) 19.17 (606,711) (13.230) 17.70 (234,171) 
Dccember31 2 2018 13&95 9.05 5 125,750 4,514 s 9.05 $ 40,852 

No stock options were exercised in 2016 or 20 I 7. During 2018 5,000 stock options were exercised from the Delmar 
Bancorp stock option plan at an exercise price of $ 1.98. Shares issued in connection with stock option exercises are 
issued from available authorized shares. 

Liberty Bell Stock Option Plan 

In 2004 Liberty Bell Bank adopled the 2004 Incentive Stock Option Plan and the 2004 Non-Qualified Stock Option 
Plan, which were stock-based incentive compensation plans (the Plans). In February 2014 the Plans expired 
pursuant to their terms. Options under these plans had a IO year life and vested over 5 years. Remaining options 
under these plans became folly vested with the s igning of the Agreement of Merger with Delmar Bancorp in 
Febntary 2018. In accordance with the terms of the Agreement of Merger between Delmar and Liberty, the Plan was 
assumed by Delmar, and the options were converted in10 and became an op1ion to purchase an adjusted number of 
shares of 1he common stock of Delmar at an adjusted exercise price per share. The number of shares was 
detennined by multiplying the number of shares of Liberty c()mmon stock for which the option was exercisable by 
the number of shares of Delmar common stock into which shares of Liberty common stock we-re convertible in the 
Merger. whic-h was 0.2857 (the "Conversion Ratio"), rounded to the next lower whole share. The. exercise price was 
detennined by dividing rhe exercise price per share of Liberty common stock by the Conversion Ratio, rounded up 
to the nearest cent. Al the effective time of the merger there were 48.225 options outstanding at an exercise price of 
$I. I 8. These shares were converted to 13,771 options outstanding at an exercise price of $4.14. During 2018, 5,062 
options were exercised at an exercise price ofS4.14. 
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Note 12. Stock Option Plaas (Continued) 

Remaining options for 8,709 shares were outstanding as follows: 

Emelo)!CS Dirccrors 
A,,rage A>erage 

Shares Price Amount Shares Price Amoum 
March 1,2018 5,361 4.14 s 22,195 8,410 s 4.1 4 34.818 

Exerrised in 2018 (3,006) 4.14 !12,445) (2,056) 4.14 (8,512) 
~ccmbcr 31, 2018 2,355 s 4.14 s 9,750 6,354 s 4.14 s 26,306 

As stated in Note I, the Company follows ASC Topic 7 18-10 which requires 1ha1 stock-based compensation 10 

employees and directors be recognized as compensation cost in Lhc income statement based on their fair values on 
the mcasurcmcn1 date, which, for the Company, is the date of the grant. All stock option expenses had been fully 
recognized prior to 2018. 

Note 13. Restricted S tock Plan 

The Bank has an employee and director restricted stock plan and has reserved 405,805 shares of stock for issuance 
thereunder. The Company has adopted the Plan, pursuant to which employee and directors o f the Company may 
acquire shares of common stock. The Plan was adop1ed by 1he Company' s Board of Directors in April 2014, and, 
subject to the right of the Board of Directors to 1crminate the Plan a, any time, tennina1cs on June 30, 2018. The 
1en11inatiun of1hc Plan, either at the scheduled tennination date or before such date, will not rtfT<.."Ct any award issued 
prior to termination. Shares awarded in 2016 had a four-year vesting period, with the number of shares to vest based 
on 1he Company's pcrfom,ance relative to pre-established performance goals during the four year vesting period. 
During 2016, no shares of stock were awarded under the restricted stock plan. During 2017 and 2018 the Company 
awarded 5.000 and S9,000 shares. re.spectively, to individual employees based on certain employment crite.ria. 
TI,ese shares will vest over n.vo or three years. based on the specific employment agreemem. Each award from the 
plan is evidenced by an award agreemen1 that specifies the vesting period of the restricted stock plan. the number of 
shares to which the award pertains. and such other provisions as the grantor determines. 

As of December 31.2018 non-vested restricted stock awards total ing 9,000 were outstanding as follows: 

Nonvcstcd AwMds December 3 I, 20 16 

Granted in 2017 
Vested in 2017 
Forfeited in 2017 
Nomcsted Aw·ards December 3 1.20 17 

C ranted i 11 20 I 8 
Vested in 2018 
Forfoited in 2018 
Nonvested Awards December 3.12 2018 

Employees 
Weigh1ed 
A\erage 

Shares Fair Value 
60,870 $ 4 .17 

5,000 7.10 
(2,500) 7.10 

(60,870) 4.17 
2.500 $ 7.10 

9,000 7.30 
(2,500) 7.10 

9,000 s 7.30 

Directors 

Shares 
23,050 

(23,050) 

Weigh1ed 
A\e rage 

Fair Value 
S 4.19 

4.18 
s 

- s 
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Note 13. Restricted Stock Plan (Continued) 

As stated in Note I, the Company follows ASC Topic 718- 10 which requires that restricted stock-based 
compensalion to employees and directors be recognized as compensation cost in the income statement based on their 
fair values on the measurement date. The fair value of restricted stock granled in 2017 and 2018 is equal to the 
underlying fair value of the stock. No restricted stock•based compensation expense was recognized 2016. As a 
result of applying the provisions of ASC Topic 718-10, during 2017 the Company recognized restricted stock-based 
compensation expense of $17,751, or $10.917 net of tax. related to the 201 4 restricted stock awards. During 2018 
the Company recognized stock•based compensation expense of$36,000, or $26,460 net of tax, related to the 2014 
restricted stock awards. Unrecogni7.ed restricted stock-base-<! compen~a1-ion expense related to 2014 restricted stock 
awards totaled approximately $47,000 at December 31, 2018. The remaining period over which this unrecognized 
expense is expected to be recognized i~ approximately two years. 

Note 14. t:arninJl$ Per Share 

Diluted eaniings (loss) per share are calculated as follows: 

2018 20 17 2016 
Net income applicable 10 basic earnings 

per common share s 5,482,738 s 3,4 14,384 $4,017,727 
\Veighted average shares outstanding 9,691,459 8.2 19,576 8,209,667 
Basic carnin~ ~r share 0.566 0.4 15 0.489 
Effect of diluti,., securities: 
Weighted a,crage shares outstanding 

under options Delmar 2004 stock option plan (I) 26,852 68,288 116,653 
\Veigllled a\'erage exercise price s 9.05 s 14,90 $ 18.07 
Assumed proceeds on exercise s 243,011 s 1,0 17,218 $2,107,920 
A\ierage market value s 7.47 s 6.73 $ 6.04 
Weighted average shares outstanding 

under options Liberty 2004 stock option plan 12,139 68.288 116,653 
Weighted a\ierage exercise price s 3.98 s 14.90 s 18.07 
Assumed proceeds on exercise s 48,313 s 1,0 17,218 $2,107.920 
Average market value s 7.47 s 6.73 $ 6.04 
Less: Treasury stock purchased \\;th 

assumed proceeds from exercise 6,474 
Weighted a,,:rage shares outstanding 

wider restricted stock plans (2) 10,038 86.211 167,607 
Diluted vfcighted a~rage shares and common 

stock equivalents 9,707,162 8,305,787 8,377.274 
Diluted carnin~ ~r share s 0.565 s 0.4 11 $ 0.480 

( I) Options ,verc excluded from the calculation of dilutive carning.s per s hare because they arc anli-dilulive. 

(2) Includes ,ested shares not yet issued and nom,:sted shares as of December 31. 
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Note IS. Regulatory Ca11ital .Requirements 

T he Company and the Bank are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by Federal banking 
agencies. failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory • and possibly additional 
discretionary - actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Bank's financial 
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the 
Company and the Bank must meet specific capital adequacy guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the 
Bank's assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. 
The Bank's capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about 
components, risk weigh1ing, and other fac1ors. 

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Company and the Bank to 
maintain minimum amounts and ratios (as defined in the regulations) of total and Tier I capital to risk-weighted 
assets, Tier I capital to average assets. and beginning in 2015, common equity Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets. 
Management believes as of December 31, 2018 that the Company and the Bank meet all capital adequacy 
requirements to which they are subject. 

As of December 31, 2018, the most recent notification fi-om the FDIC categorized the Bank as well capitalized 
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized the Bank must 
maintain minirnum total risk-based, Tier I risk-based, Tier I leverage and. beginning in 2015, common equity Tier I 
risk-based ratios. There are no conditions or events since that notifica1ion that management believes have changed 
the Bank's category. 

T he Common Equity Tier I (beginning in 2015), T ier I and Total capital ratios are calculated by dividing the 
respective capital amounts by risk-weighted assets. Risk- weighted assets are calculated based o n regulatory 
requirements and include 1otal as.sets, with certain exclusions, allocated by risk weight category, and certain off­
balance-sbeet items, among other things. The levernge rntio is calculated by dividing Tier J capital by adjusted 
qua11erly average iota! assets, w hich exclude goodwill and other intangible assets, among o ther things. 

When fully phased in on January I, 2019, the Basel Iii Capital Rules will require the Bank and Bancorp to maintain 
(i) a minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier l capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 4.5%, plus a 2.5% "capital 
conservation buffer" (which is added to the 4.5% Common Equity Tier I capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, 
effectively resulting in a minimum ratio of Common Equity Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets of at least 7.0% 
upon full implementation), (ii) a minimum ratio of T ier l capital 10 risk-weigh1ed assets ofat least 6.0%, plus the 
capital conservation buffer (which is added 10 the 6.0% Tier I capital ratio as that buffer is phased in, effectively 
resulting in a minimum Tier I capital ratio of8.5% upon full implementation). (iii) a minimum ratio of Total capital 
(that is, Tier I plus T ier 2) to risk-weighted assets of at least 8.0%, plus the capital conservation buffer (which is 
added to the 8.0% total capital ratio as that buffer is phased in. effectively resulting in a minimum total capital ratio 
of 10.5% upon full implementation) and ( iv) a minimum leverage ratio of4.0%, calculated as the ratio of T ier I 
capital to average quarterly assets. 

T he implementation of the capital conservation buffer began on January I, 2016 at the 0.625% level and be phased 
in over a four-year period (increasing by that amounl on each subsequent January I, until it reaches 2.5% on January 
I, 2019). The Basel Ill Capital Rules also provide for a "countercyclical capital buffer" that is applicable to only 
certain covered institutions and does not have any current applicability to the Bank or Bancorp. The capilal 
conservation buffer is designed to absorb losses during periods of economic stress and, as detailed above. e ffectively 
increases the minimum required risk~weighted capital ratios. Banking institutions with a ratio of Common Equity 
Tier I capital to risk-weighted assets below the effective minimum (4.5% plus the capital conservation buffer and, if 
applicable, the countercyclical capital buffer) will face constraints on dividends, equity repurchases and 
compensation based on the amount of the shortfall. 
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Note IS. Regulatory Capital Requirements (Continued) 

The following table presents actual and required capital ratios as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 for the Bank and 
Bancorp under the Basel Il l Capital Rules. The minimum required capital amounts presented include the minimum 
required capital levels as of December 31, 2018 based on the phase-in provisions of the Basel Ill Capital Rules and 
the minimum required capital levels as of January I, 2019 when the Basel Ill Capital Rules have been folly phased­
in, Capital levels required to be considered well capitalized are based upon promp1 corrcclivc action regulations. as 
amended to reflect the changes under the Basel Il l Capital Rules. A comparison of the Company's and the Bank's 
capilal amounts and ratios as of December 3 1, 2018 and 2017 with the mjnimum requiremenls are presented below. 

hi Thnw;qnds 

As of December 3 1. 2018 
Total Capital Ratio 

(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp S 
The Bank of Delmarva 

'lier I Capital Ratio 
(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 
lbe Bank of Delmarva 

Common Equity Tier I Ratio 

(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Del mar Bancorp 
The Bank o fDelman•a 

lier I t..e,·eragc Ratio 

(To Average Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 
The Bank of Delmarva 

As of December 3 I , 20 I 7 
Total C"pital Ratio 

(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Del mar Bancorp $ 

11-.e Bank of Delmar"a 
Tier I Capital Ratio 

(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Del mar Bancorp 
11,e Bank of Delmarva 

Common Equity Tter I Ratio 
(To Risk Weighted Assets) 
Delmar Bancorp 
11,e Bank of Dclmar,a 

lier I Lc,cragc Ratio 
(To A,erage A~sets) 
Delmar Bancorp 
The Bank of Dclman,a 

&!!Ji!l. 
Amount 

72,344 
7 1,498 

58,516 
64,170 

S8.S16 
64,170 

58,5 16 
64,170 

56,775 
56.656 

49.023 
50,904 

49,023 
50,904 

49,023 
50,904 

Ratio 

11.8 % S 
11.7 % 

9.6 % 
10.S % 

9.6 
10.S 

8.0 % 
8.7 % 

12.4 % $ 

12.3 % 

10.7 % 
II.I % 

10.7 % 
II.I % 

8.8 % 
9.2 % 

For Capital 
Adequacy 

~ 
Amount 

60,466 
60,42S 

48,220 
48,187 

39,03S 
39,009 

29,377 
29,377 

42.457 
42.457 

33,277 
33,277 

26,392 
26,392 

22,184 
22,184 

Ratio 

9.9 % S 
9.9 % 

7.9 % 
7.9 % 

6.4 % 
6.4 % 

To Be 
We ll Capitalized 

Under Prompt 
Corrective Acl ion 

~ 
Amount Ratio 

NIA 
61 ,190 10.0 % 

NIA 
48,952 8.0 % 

NIA 
39,774 6.S % 

4.0 % NIA 
4.0 % 36,721 5.0 % 

9.3 % S NIA 
9.3 % 45.899 I 0.0 % 

7.3 % NIA 
7.3 % 36,719 8.0 % 

5.8 % NIA 
5.8 % 29,834 6.5 % 

4.0 % 
40 % 

NIA 

27,730 5.0 % 
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Note 15. Regulatory Capital Requirements (Continued) 

Banking regulations also limit the amount of dividends that may be pa id without prior approval of the Bank's 
regulatory agencies. Regulatory approval is required to pay dividends, which exceed the Bank·s net profits for the 
current year plus its retained net profits for the preceding two years. 

Note 16. Fair Values of Financial Instruments 

The following table shows the estimated fair value and the related carrying values o f the Company's financial 
instmments at December 3 1. 2018 and 2017. Items that are not fmancial instruments are not inch1ded. Amounts are 
shown in thousands (000). 

2018 20 17 
Estimated Estimated 

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
Amount Value Amount Value 

Financial assets: 
Cash and due from banks s 24,347 $ 24,347 s 22,058 $ 22.058 
Interest bearing deposits 4,093 4,093 7,032 7,032 
Fedcml funds sold 1,254 1,254 3,493 3,493 
Securities: 

Available for sale 51,300 51,300 46,662 46,662 
Loans, net of allowance- for 

credit losses 625,513 604,290 462,701 454,957 
Accrued interest receivable 2,103 2,103 1,598 1,598 
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,652 2,652 2,354 2.354 
Maryland Financial Bank stock 30 30 
Atlantic Central Bankers stock 131 131 75 75 
Other i1westments 1,537 1,537 1,500 1,500 

Financial liabilities: 
Deposits s 6 14,925 $ 570,509 s 465.457 s 427.297 
Accrued interest payable 392 392 230 230 
Long-term borro"ings and note payable 49,989 56,979 46,148 46,795 

Unrecognjzed financial instruments: 
Commitments to extend credit s 114,395 $ 114,395 s 81,496 s 81,496 
Standby letters of credit 3,276 3,276 3.211 3.211 

For purposes of the above disclosures of estimated fair value, the following assumptions were used. 

Cash and cash equivalents : 

The estimated fair value for cash and due from banks, interest-bearing deposits in other banks. and Federal funds 
purchased is considered to approximate cost because of their short-tem1 nature. 

Investment securities: 

Esti mated fair values are based on quoted market prices for actual or similar instruments or estimated using 
discounted cash flows. The discounts used are estimated using comparable market rates for simil11r types of 
instruments adjusted to be commensurate with the audit risk, overhead costs, and optionality of such investments. 
Sec Note 17 for further discussion. 
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Note 16. Fair Values of Flnancl:11 lnstrume.nts (Continued) 

Loans: 

The estimated fair value for certain homogeneous categories of loans, such as residential mo11gages, is based on the 
quoted market price for sec-uritics backed by similar loans, adjusted for differences in loan characteristics. The 
estimated fair value of other loans is detcnninccl by discounting future cash flows using current rntes at which 
s imilar loans would be made to borrowe-rs with similar credit ratings and for the same remaining maturities. 

De1>osits: 

The estimated fair value of deposits with no suited maturity, such as noninterest-bearing demand deposits, savings. 
NO\V accounts and money market accounts, is equal to the amount payable on demand at the reportjng date (that is, 
their carrying a111ounts). The fair value of certificates of deposit is based oo the rntes currently offered for deposits 
of similar maturities and using a d iscounted cash flow amtlysis. The fair value estimates do not include the benefit 
that results from the low-cost funding provided by the deposit l iabilities compared to the cost of borrowing funds in 
the market. 

Borrowings: 

The fair value of long-lerrn fixed rnte borrowings is estimated by d iSC-Ounting future cash flows using current interest 
rntes currently offered for 1;imilar financial instruments. 

Unrecogni1.ed financial instruments: 

The fair value of unrecognized financial instruments would be estimated using the fees currently charged to enter 
into similar agreemcnL,;;, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements, the current interest rates, and the 
present cred itworthiness of the customers. 

O ther assets and liabilities: 

0 1her asse1s and liabilities of the Bank 1hat are no t defined as financial instruments are no1 included in the above 
disclosures, such as property and equipment Also, non-financial instruments typically not recognized in the 
financial statemems nevenheless may have value but are not included in the above d isclosures. These include, 
among other items, 1he estimated earnings power of core deposit accounts, the trained work force, customer 
goodwi111 and s imilar items. 

The following table presents the canying amount, fair value, and placement in the fair value hiernrchy of the 
Company"s financial instmments not disclosed elsewhere as of December 31. 2018. This table excludes financial 
instruments for which the carrying amount approximates fair value. 

21118 Fair Val ue Hierarchy 
Cart')•lng Fair 
Amount Value Level I Le,•el 2 Le,·el 3 

Financial assets: 
Loans, net s 625,513.347 604.289.837 s s 604.289.837 

Financ ial liabililics: 

hnerest-bearing. dcix,si1s s 429.449,738 393.813.120 s 138.193,893 s 255.619.227 
Long-1crm borro¼in,gs 

and note payable 49 988 929 569792 16 56979216 
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Note 17. Fair Value Measurements 

Effective January I, 2008, the Company adopted ASC 820- 10 fair Value Measurements and Disclosures which 
provides a framework for measuring and d isclosing fair value under generally accepted accounting principles. ASC 
Topic 820 requires disclosures about the fair value of assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet in periods 
subscqucnL 10 in itial recognition, whet.her the measurements arc made on a recurring basis (for example. available• 
for-sale investments securities) o r o n a nonrecurring basis (for example. impaired loans). 

ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to n·ansfer a 
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on the measurement date. ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value h ierarchy which 
requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs w hen 
measuring fair value. The standard describes three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value 
Fair Value Hierarchy 

Level I - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2 - O ther significant observable inputs ( including q uoted prices in act ive markets for similar assets 
or liabilities) 
Level 3 -Significant unobservable inputs (inc luding the. Bank 's own assumptions in determining the fair 
value of assets or liabilities) 

In detennining the appropriate levels, the Bank performs a detailed analysis of assets and liabilities that are subject 
to ASC Topic 820. 

The following table presents fair value measurements on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2018: 

Fair 
Le,•el I Level 2 Level 3 Value 

Securities avai lable for sale: 

Obligations o f U.S 
Government agencies $ $ 9,420,372 s $ 9,420,372 

Obligations o f States and 
political s ubdivisions 21,096,448 2 1,096,448 

Mortgage-backed securities 19.403,601 19,403,60 1 
Eguit;t securities 1,379.863 I 

1
379

1
863 

Total securities available for sale $ $ 51,300,284 s $ 5 1,300.284 

Securities available-for-sale are based on quoted market prices, where available. If quoted market pr ices are not 
available, fair values are based o n quoted market p rices o f comparable instnunents, which are cons idered level 2 
inputs. For these securities, management obtains fair value measurements from an independent pricing scn,icc. 

The Bank may also be required, from lime to time, to measure certain other financial and non-financial assets and 
liabilities at fair value on a non-recurring basis in accordance with GAAP. The following table presents all fair 
value measuremems on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2018: 

Fair 
Level I Level 2 Level 3 Value 

Impaired loans s s s 26.640,215 $ 26.640,215 
OR.EO 3 ,660.354 3.660,354 

Totnl s s 3,660,354 $ 26,640,215 $ 30,300,569 



 45 

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 17. Fair Value Measurements (Continued) 

Measured on a Non-Recurring Basis: 

Financial Assets and Liabili1ies 

The Bank is predominantly a cash flow lender with real estate serv ing as collateral on a majority ofloans. Loans 
which are deemed to be impaired financial assets are primarily valued on a nonrecurring basis at the fair values of 
the underlying real cs1atc collateral. The Bank dc1ennincs such fair values from independent appraisals, w hich 
management considers level 3 inputs. 

Non Financial Assels and Non Financial Liabililies 

The. Company has no non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities measured a t fa ir value o n a recurring basis. 
Ce11ain non- financial assets and non- financial liab ilities typ ically measured at fair value o n a non-recurring basis 
include foreclosed a~seL-, (upon initia l recognition or subsequent impairment). no n-financial assets and non-financial 
liabilities measured at fair value in lbe second step of a goodwill impairmeot lest, aad iniangible assets and other 
no n-financial long-lived assets measured at fair value for impainnent assessment. 

Fon..'Closed real estate were adjusted to their fai r values, resulting in an impainncnt charge, which was inc luded in 
earnings for the year. Foreclosed real eslate. which are considered to be non-financial assels, have been valued 
using a market approach at the time they are recorded in OREO. The values were detennined using current market 
prices of similar real estate assels, which the Bank considers 10 be level 2 inpuls. 

Note 18. Goodwill and Intangible Assets 

The Company accounts for goodwill and olher inlangible assclS in accordance with ASC Topic 350, " Intangibles -
Goodwill and Other." The Company records the excess of cost acquired entities over lhe fair value of idenlifiable 
tangib le and intang ib le assets acquired, less liabilities assumes, as goodwill. The Company amortizes acquired 
intangible assets with definite useful economic lives over their useful economic lives. On a periodic basis, 
management assesses w hether events o r changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the intangible 
assets may be impaired . 171e Company does not amo11ize goodwill or any acquired intangible assets with an 
indefinite usefu l economic li fe, but reviews them for impairment on an annual basis, or when events or changes in 
circums1ances indicate !hat 1he carrying amounts may be impaired. The Company has perfonned 1he required 
g000wil1 impainncnt test and has detcnnined that goodwill was not impaired as of December 31

1 
2018. 
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Note 18. Goodwill and Intangible Assets (Continued) 

Goodwill: The Company acquired goodwill in the purchase of Liberty Bell Bank (see Note 20). The following 
table provides changes in goodwill for the periods ended December 31, 2018 and December 31 , 2017: 

Balance at the beginning o f the period 

Liberty Be ll Bank acquisition 
Im ,ai rn1en1 

Balance at the end of the period 

Period ended December 31 
2018 2017 

s $ 

5,237,067 

5,237,067 

Core Deposit Intangible: The Company acquired a core deposit intangible in the acquisition of Libeny Bell Bank 
(sec Note 9). The Company utilizes the double declining balance method of amonization, in which the straight line 
amortization rnte is doubled and applied to the remaining unamortized p0rtion of the intangible asset. The 
amortization method changes to the straight line method ofamort·ization when the straight line amortization amount 
exceeds the amount that would be calculated under the double declining balance method. 111e core deposit 
intangible will be amortized over seven years. The following table provides changes in the core deposit intangible 
for the periods ended December 3 1, 2018 and December 31, 2017: 

Balance at the beginni ng o f the period 

Liberty Bell Bank acquisition 

Accumulated amortization 
Balance at the end of the period 

Period ended December 31 

2018 2017 

s $ 

1,489,000 

(420,000) 
1,069,000 

Deposits Purchased Premium: The Company paid a deposit premium in the acquisition of Libeny Bell Bank (see 
Note 9), which is included in the balances of time deposits on the balance sheets. The premium amount is amortized 
as a reduction in interest expense over the li fe of the acquired time deposits. The premium on deposits will be 
amortized over five years. The following table provides changes in the deposit premium for the. pe1iods ended 
December 3 1, 2018 and December 3 1, 2017: 

Balance at lhe beginning of the period 
Liberty Bell Bank acquisition 

Accumulated accretion 

Balance at the end of the period 

Period e nded December 31, 
2018 2017 

s $ 

108,212 

(80,712) 
27,500 
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Note 19. Pare nt Comp•ny •-inancial Information 

Prcscn1cd below are comparalive balance sheets of the parcn1 company, Delmar Bancorp, as of December 31, 2018 
and 2017, and statements of operations and cash flows for each of the years ended December 31, 2018, 20 17 and 
2016. 

BALANCE SHEETS 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 

2018 2017 

ASSETS 
Cash 

l.nvestment in subsidiaries, at equity 
Other assets 

Total assets 

LIABlLITIES 
Other l iabilities 

Note payable 

Total liabilities 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
Common s1ock, par v.ilue $.0 I per share. 

aulhori,cd 20,000,000 shares; issued and o uts ianding 

20 18 9,985,021 and 20 I 7 8,219,576 
Surplus 

Retained earnings 
Accumulated othe r comprehensive loss. net of 

deferred tax benefils 20 18 $263,.365; 2017 $91,355 

Total s tockholders' equity 

Total li•bilities •nd stockholders' equity 

$ 353,6 16 s 1,118 
7 1,641 ,862 50,694,111 

902 984 577 36 1 

$ 72 898 462 S 51,272,590 

$ 410,410 s 206,59 1 

6,500,000 2,000,000 

$ 6,910,410 s 2,206,59 1 

$ 99,853 s 82,196 
29,469,680 16,622,245 
37,149,484 32,614,597 

(730,965) (253,039) 

65,988,052 49,065,999 

$ 72,898,462 S 51.272.590 
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Note 19. Parent Company financial Information (Continued) 

STA1EMEN1S OF INCOME 
Years Ended December 31, 2018, 2017, and 20 16 

2018 20 17 20 16 

Slock-base.d compensation expense s $ 

Interest expense on borrowings (427,765) ( 136,064) ( 136.437) 

Merger rela1ed expenses (248,142) 

Other ex~nses, net ( 140,643) (54,600) (54,393) 

Loss before incorne taxes and equity 
in undistributed ne1 income of subsidiaries (8 16,550) (190,664) ( 190,830) 

Income tax benefits ( 1) 223,149 25.273 109,343 
Equity in undis1ributcd net income 

of subsidiaries 6 076 139 3,579,775 4,099,2 14 

Ne, income s 5,482,738 s 3,414,384 4,017.72 7 

( I) Benefits from filing con.~olidatcd Federal income ta.x return. 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Years Ended December 3 1, 2018, 2017, and 2016 

2018 2017 2018 

CASA FLOWS FROM OPERATrNG ACTIVITIES: 
Net income S 5,482,738 S 3,4 14 ,384 $ 4,017,727 
Adjustments to reconcile net income lo net cash 

used in opernting ac1ivities: 
Equity in undistributed nel income of sub$idiaries 
Srock-based compensa1ion expense 
Changes in assets and liabilities: 
lncrcnsc in other o.sscts 
Increase in 01her liabilities 

Net cash used in operating acrivities 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVl'l'IES: 

Cash paid to shareholders of Libeny Bell Bank 
Net cash used by investing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES: 
Dividends paid 
Proceeds from long~tcrm borrowings 
Dividends received from subsidary 
Cash received for the exercise of stock options 
Issuance of restricted stock 
Redemption of preferred stock 
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 

Net increase (dc..x:rcasc) in cash 
Cash~ beginning of year 
Cash, end of year 

(6,076,139) (3,579,775) (4,099,2 14) 

(325,623) 
203.819 

(715,205) 

(4,471,302) 
(4,471,302) 

(947,851) 

4,500,000 
1,956,000 

30,856 

5,539,005 
352,498 

1,118 
S 353,616 S 

(41,410) 
21,662 

( 185,139) 

(657,566) 

843,823 

186.257 
1,118 

1,118 $ 

(206,255) 
5,823 

(281,9 19) 

(491,123) 

585,561 

94,438 
(187,481) 
187.481 
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Note 20. Liberty Bell Transaction 

On March I, 2018, the Company completed its acquisition of Liberty Bell Bank ("LBB''), a New Jersey 
chartered commercial bank. LBB shareholders received 0.2857 shares of the Company's common stock for each 
share of LBB common stock they owned as of the effective date of the acquisition, cash consideration of $1.70 
per share or a combination thereof. The aggregate consideration paid to LBB shareholders was S 17.3 million. 
The results of LB B's operations are included in the Company 's consolidated statements of income for the year 
ended December 3 1, 2018 for the period beginning March I, 2018, tl1e date of the acquisition. 

The acquisition of LBB added market share in Burlington and Camden Counties in Southern New Jersey. 
The acquisition resulted in three new branches in Evesham, C herry Hill, and Moorestown, New Jersey. 

The acquisition of LBB was accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting and, accordingly, assets 
acquired, liabilities assumed and cons ideration paid were recorded at their estimated foir values as o f the 
acquisition date. The excess consideration paid over the fair vallle of 11et assets acquired has been reported 
as goodwill in the Company's consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31 , 2018. 

The assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition of LBB were recorded at their estimated fair 
values based on management's best estimates us ing inforniation available at the date of the acqllisition and arc 
subject to adjustment for up to one year after the closing date of the acquis ition. The items most susceptible 
to adjustment are the credit fair value adjustments on loans, core deposit intangible and the deferred income tax 
assets resulting from the acquisition. 
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Note 20. Liberty Bell Transaction (Continued) 

In connection with the acquisition, the considcrarion paid and 1he fair value o f identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed as of the date o f acquisition are summarized in the following table: 

Consideration paid: 
Cash 
Common stock issued in acquisition 

To1al cort.:;ideration paid 

Assets acquired: 
Cash and cash equi,"Rlents 
l_n\lestment securities 
Investments in correspondent bank stock 
Loans 
Premises and equipment 
Othe r real estate owned 
Accrued in1erest receivable 
Core deposit imangible 
Deferred tax asset 
Othe r assets 

Total assets acquired 

Liabilities assumed: 
Deposits 
Other liabi lities 

To1al liabilities assumed 

Net assets acquired 
Good'A'i ll recorded in acquisition 

Estimated 
Fair 

Value as of March I 2018 

$ 

s 

s 

s 

s 

4,471 ,302 
12,798,236 
17,269,538 

11,830,975 
7,605,174 

180,250 
121,673,856 

2, 148,041 
945,604 
357,570 

1,489,000 
4,263,012 
1,038,773 

151,532,255 

138,240,515 
1 259 269 

139,499,784 

12,032,471 
5,237,067 

Acquire<! loans (impaired and non-impaire<t) are initially recorded at their acquisition-date fair values using Level 3 
inputs. Fair values are based on a discounted cash flow methodology that involves assumptions and judgments as to 
credil risk. expected life- time losses, environmental factors, collateral values, discount rates, expected payments and 
expected prepayments. Specifically, the Company has prepared three separate loan fair value adjustmenLS that it 
believes a market participant might employ in estimating the entire fair value adjustment necessary under ASC 
820- 10 for the acquired loan ponfolio. The three separate fair valuation methodologies employed are: (i) an interest 
rate loan fair value adjustment, (ii) a general credit fair value adjustment, and (iii) a specific credit fair value 
adjustment for purchased credit impaired loans subject to ASC 3 10~30 provisions. The acquired loans were 
rec-0rde<l at fair value at t.he acquisition date without carryover of LBB's previously established allowance for loan 
losses. The fair value of the financial assets acquired included loans receivable with a principal balance, prior to fair 
value adjustments, of SI 24.5 million. 
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Note 20. Liberty Bell Transaction (Continued) 

The table below illustrates the foir value adjustments made to the amortized cost basis to present a fair value of the 
loans acquired: 

Gross principal balance 
Fair vaJue adj ustment on pools of non-credit impaired loans 

Fair ,aJuc adjustment on purchased credit impaired loans 

Fair value of acquired loans 

s 

s 

At March I 2018 

124,545,302 
(1,702,986) 
( I, 168,460) 

12 1,673,856 

The c-redit adjustment on acquired impaired loans is derived in accordance with ASC 310-30 and represents the 
ponion of the loan balances that have been deemed uncollectible based on the Company's expectations of funire cash 
flows for each respective loan: 

Contractually required principal and interest at acquisition 
Contractual cashJlo"~ not expected to be col lected (oon-accrctablc discount) 
Expected cash f1o,\.S at acquisition 
[ntcrest component of expected cash flows 
Pair value for loans acquired under ASC 310-30 

s 

s 

AtMarchl 2018 

2,469,059 
(922,038) 

1,54 7,021 
(24 6,422) 

1.300,599 

The fair value of savings and transaction deposit accounts acquired from LBB provide value to tl1e Company as 
a source of below market rate funds. The fair value of the core deposit intangible was detem1ined based on a 
discounted cash now analysis using a discount rate based on the estimated cost of capital for a market 
participant. To calculate cash nows, the sum of deposit account servicing cosis (net of deposit fee income) and 
interest expense on deposits were compared to the cost of alternative funding sources available to the Company. 
The expected cash flows of the deposit base included estimated attrition rates. The core deposit intangible was 
valued at $1.49 million or 2.04% of core deposits. The core deposit intangible asset is being amoni,ed on a 
double declining basis over 7 years. 

Direct costs related to the merger were accrued and expensed as incurred. During the years ended December 31, 
2018 and 2017, the Company incurred $1,388,506 and $787,350, respectively in Libeny merger-related expenses. 

Note 21. Bank Acquisition 

On December 13, 2018 the Company entered into a share exchange agreement with Virginia Panners Bank 
ePartners"). Panners is a commercial bank chanered by the Commonwealth of Virginia Bureau of Financial 
Institutions and insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. Panners i.s headquartered in 
Fredericksburg, V irginia, which is the localion of the operations center and administrative headquarters and 
three branch omccs. An additional branch omce is located in La Plata, Maryland, and a loan production office 
is located in Annapolis, Maryland. Each share of Partners common stock will be converted into the right to 
receive I. 7179 shares of Delmar Bancorp common stock. From and after the effective time of the share 
exchange, former holders of Panners Common Stock shall be shareholders of Delmar. and shall have no rights 
or interest as a shareholder of Panners. As of December 31 , 2018, there were 4,085,181 shares of Panners 
common stock outstanding which were held be approxima1cly 342 holders of record. Panners will continue to 
conduct its business as a wholly owned first tier subsidiary of Delmar, under the name "Virginia Partners 
Bank". The share exchange is anticipated to become effective during the second quaner of 2019. 

Direct costs related to the merger were accrued and expensed as incurred. During the year ended December 3 1, 
2018, the Company incurred $248,142 in Partners merger-related expenses. 
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ote 22. Stranded locome Tax Effects in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 

During 2017, the Bank elected to early adopt Accow11ing tandard Update (A U), Income Statement - Reponing 
Comprehensive Income (Topic 120): Reclassification o/Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other 
Comprehensit•e Income. The S is intended to help organizations reclassify cenain stranded income tax effects in 
accumulated other comprehensive income resul ting from the Tax Cuts and Job Act of 20 17. As a resul t of the 
change, the Bank reclassified stranded tax effccis within accumulated other comprehensive income to retained 
earnings totaling $44,623 based on the change in the U . . federal corporate income tax rate from a historical rate of 
34% to the newly enacted corporate income tax rate of 21 %. 

Note 23. Date of Management's Review 

ln preparing the financial statemenis, management has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition or 
disclosure through March 14, 2019. the date that the financial tatemenls were available to be i sued. 
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Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

East Salisbury Office 

Nancy L. Shrieves, Manager 

(410)543-9300 

241 Beaglin Park Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21804 
 

Eastern Shore Drive Office 

John Q. Aukward, Jr., Manager 

(410)548-1700 

921 Eastern Shore Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

Pecan Square Office 

Marcia L. Dayton, Manager 

(410)546-2100 

1206 Nanticoke Road 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

Cash Mgt./Remote Deposit Capture 

Karin D’ Armi - Hunt 

(410)548-1100 

2245 Northwood Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 
 

Loan Production Office 

James D. Barr, Loan Officer 

(302)226-1960 

19264 Miller Road, Unit A 

Rehoboth Beach, Delaware 19971 

Seaford Office 

Robin H. Parker, Manager 

(302)629-2700 

910 Norman Eskridge Highway 

Seaford, Delaware 19973 
 

Laurel Office 

Kevin J. Christophel, Manager 

(302)875-5901 

200 East Market Street 

Laurel, Delaware 19956 
 

Dagsboro Office 

Crystal L. Hudson, Manager 

(302)732-3610 

28280 Clayton Street, Post Office Box 98 

Dagsboro, Delaware 19939 
 

Pelican Square Office 

June E. Betts, Manager 

(302)226-8900 

18572 Coastal Highway 

Rehoboth Beach, Delaware 19971 
 

North Ocean City Office 

Amy L. Senseny, Manager 

(410)250-5330 

12505 Coastal Highway 

Ocean City, Maryland 21842 
 

West Office City Office 

Kelly R. Swagler, Manager 

(410)213-1555 

12720 Ocean Gateway, Unit 4 

Ocean City, Maryland 21842 
 

Loan Department 

Casey L. Coco, Manager 

(410)548-1100 

2245 Northwood Drive 

Salisbury, Maryland 21801 

LIBERTY BELL BANK, A DIVISION OF THE BANK OF DELMARVA 

BRANCH OFFICES 

Evesham Office 

Joyce P. Stewart, Manager 

(856)830-1130 

145 North Maple Avenue 

Marlton, NJ 08053 

Moorestown Office 

Jill C. Spangler, Manager 

(856)802-0901 

227 West Camden Avenue 

Moorestown, NJ 08057 

Cherry Hill Office 

Vince A. Iannitti, Manager 

(856)489-8401 

2099 Route 70 East 

Cherry Hill, NJ 08003 
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THE BANK OF DELMARVA 
 
 

Services 
 

ATM/Debit Card 

Auto-Draft (transfer from one account to another) 

Direct Deposit - Night Depository - Safe Deposit Boxes 

Money Orders - Travelers Checks 

TeleBANC 

Internet Home Banking 

Internet Bill Payment 

Consumer Mobile Banking and Mobile Deposit 

Online Statements 

Cash Management/Remote Deposit Capture 

CoinPlus 

LockBox 

Customer Service – 800-787-4542/410-548-7892/888-285-7826 

 

Deposits 
 

Certificates of Deposit - Christmas Club Savings 

IRA - Tiered Money Market - NOW 

Personal and Business Checking - Savings 

 

Loans 
 

Automobile - Boat - Commercial - Equipment 

Commercial Lines of Credit - Home Equity - Home Improvement 

Mortgage - Personal - Personal Lines of Credit (Key Line) 

SBA and USDA Guaranteed 

 

TeleBANC 
 

410-742-0411 or 866-991-2262 

 
 

 

 

The Bank of Delmarva’s quarterly Statement of Condition and Results of 

Operations as filed with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation can be 

viewed by visiting www.bankofdelmarvahb.com/home/about/investorrealtaions 

or https://cdr.ffiec.gov/public/ManageFacsimiles.aspx and searching for report 

“Call\TFR”  and name “Bank of Delmarva”.  

 

 
 

Visit us online @ 

www.bankofdelmarva.com or 

www.libertybellbank.com 

Member FDIC Equal Housing Lender 

http://www.bankofdelmarvahb.com/home/about/investorrealtaions
https://cdr.ffiec.gov/public/ManageFacsimiles.aspx



